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FORM A

Format of covering letter of the annual audit report to be
Filed with the stock exchanges:

Name of the Company

VTM LIMITED

g Annual financial statements for | 31% March 2018
the year ended
3. Type of Audit observation Un modified & Unqualified opinion.
Frequency of observation Whether appeared first time . . /
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remarks in Audit Report
5. To be signed by- YRS

e Chairman & Managing
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e« CFO
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¢ Audit Committee

Chairman
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{chartered Accountants)
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RM. Somesundaram
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NOTICE OFANNUALGENERALMEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the Seventy-first Annual General Meeting of the Members of the
Company will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar on
Friday, 22" day of June, 2018 at 3.00 p.m to transact the following business:

AGENDA

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Balance Sheet of the Company as at 31"
March 2018 and the Profit & Loss Statement for the year ended on that date and the
reports of the Directors and the Auditors thereon.

£

To declare a dividend on equity shares.

3. Toappointa Director in the place of Sri. K. Vethachalam who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

4. To consider and if thought fit, with or without modification, to pass the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED that the appointment of M/s. CNGSN & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants,
Chennai (ICAI Firm Regn. No.004915S/ S200036), as Statutory Auditors of the Company
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual
General Meeting at such remuneration as may be decided by the Board of Directors in
consultation with the Statutory Auditors be and is hereby ratified.

SPECIALBUSINESS:

5. To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution  as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of Section 188 and other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014 and the Regulation 23 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations applicable to Listed
Companies and subject to such other approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions of any
authorities as may be necessary, consent of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contracts or agreements for transactions of
sale, purchase or supply of goods or materials with M/s. Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd., upto an
estimated transaction value of not exceeding Rupees One Hundred Crore on behalf of the
Company, for each of the Five (5) financial years commencing from 1" April, 2019,




To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an ordinary resolution:

RESOLVED that pursuant to the provisions of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013

and Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and other applicable
provisions thereon, the payment of remuneration of Rs.30,000/- plus applicable service
tax and out of pocket expenses actually incurred during the course of audit to Mr.M.
Kannan, Cost Accountant (Regn. No.9167) for auditing the cost records and furnishing
of Report thereon for the Financial Year 2018-19 as approved by the Board of Directors
of the Company be and is hereby ratified.

NOTES:

1.

b

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which
sets out details relating to Resolutions at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy/Proxies
to attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/Proxies need not be a member of the
Company.

The instrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on
behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

Electronic copy of the Notice of Annual General Meeting of the Company inter alia
indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their
email address, physical copies of the Notice, indicating the process and manner of
e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.

Members may also note that the Notice of the Annual General Meeting will also be
available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com for their download. The physical
copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's Registered
Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business hours on
working days. Even after registering for  e-communication, members are entitled to
receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the same, by
post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send requests to the
Company's investor email id: complianceofficer@vtmill.com,
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I. IMPORTANTNOTES:

1.

Lt

The Register of Members and the Share Transfer books of the Company will remain
closed from 13th June, 2018 t0 22" June, 2018 (both days inclusive) for annual closing.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, which
sets out details relating to Special Business at the meeting, is annexed hereto.

Amember entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy/Proxies
to attend and vote instead of himself. Such a Proxy/Proxies need not be a member of the
Company.

The mstrument of Proxy in order to be effective, should be deposited at the Registered
Office of the Company, duly completed and signed, not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A Proxy Form is sent herewith. Proxies submitted on
behalf of the companies, societies etc., must be supported by an appropriate
resolution/authority, as applicable.

Members holding shares in electronic form are hereby informed that bank particulars
registered against their respective depository accounts will be used by the Company for
payment of dividend. The Company or its Registrars cannot act on any request received
directly from the Members holding shares in electronic form for any change of bank
particulars or bank mandates. Such changes are to be advised only to the Depository
Participant of the Members. Members holding shares in physical form and desirous of
either registering bank particulars or changing bank particulars already registered
against their respective folios for payment of dividend are requested to write to the
Company.

Members are requested to note that the dividends not encashed or remaining unclaimed
for a period of seven years from the date of transfer to the Unpaid Dividend Account shall
be transferred u/s. 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established under Section 125 of the Companies Act, 2013.
Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 of the Act and IEPF Rules, all shares on
which dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more shall be
transferred to IEPF Authority as notified by the MCA.

The Members/Claimants whose shares, unclaimed dividend have been transferred fo
IEPF may claim the shares or apply for refund by making an application to IEPF
Authority in Form IEPF-5 (available on www.iepf.gov.in) along with requisite fee as
decided by it from time to time. The Member/Claimant can file only one consolidated
claimin a financial year as per the IEPF Rules.
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10.

11.

12.

Members who have not encashed their dividend warrants for the financial year ended
31.03.2011 are requested to make their claim on or before 15.07.2018 being the due date
for such transfer. The members can make a claim with the company in respect of the
dividends of subsequent years that are lying in the Unpaid Dividend Account of the
Company.

Members are requested to note that pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, SEBI Listing Regulations and the IEPF Rules, all such shares in respect of which
dividends have not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years or more are also
required to be transferred to IEPF. The company is taking steps for sending individual
notices to the concerned shareholders and for publishing of a public notice to
shareholders under the IEPF Rules in this regard.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of
Permanent Account Number (PAN) by every participant in securities market. Members
holding shares in electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAN to their
Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members
holding shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to the Company.

Details required under Regulation 36 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 in respect of the Directors seeking appointment/re
appointment at the Annual General Meeting, forms integral part of the notice. The
Directors have furnished the requisite declarations for their appointment/re
appointment.

Electronic copy of the Annual Report for the year 2017-18 is being sent to all the
members whose email IDs are registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s)
for communication purposes unless any member has requested for a hard copy of the
same.

Electronic copy of the Notice of the 71st Annual General Meeting of the Company inter
alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance Slip and Proxy
Form is being sent to all the members whose email IDs are registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) for communication purposes unless any member
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their
email address, physical copies of the Notice of the 71st Annual General Meeting of the
Company inter alia indicating the process and manner of e-voting along with Attendance
Slip and Proxy Form is being sent in the permitted mode.
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13.

14,

15.

A)

Members may also note that the Notice of the 71st Annual General Meeting and the
Annual Report for the year 2017-18 will also be available on the Company's website
www.vimill.com for their download.

The physical copies of the aforesaid documents will also be available at the Company's
Registered Office in Sulakarai, Virudhunagar for inspection during normal business
hours on working days. Even after registering for e-communication, members are
entitled to receive such communication in physical form, upon making a request for the
same, by post free of cost. For any communication, the shareholders may also send
requests to the Company's investor email id: complianceofficer@vtmill.com.

Voting through electronic means

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 20 of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, the Company is pleased
to provide members' facility to exercise their right to vote at the 71st Annual General
Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be transacted through e
-Voting Services provided by Karvy.

Instructions and other information relating to e-voting are as under:

In case a Member receives an email from Karvy (for Members whose email Ids are
registered with the Company/Depository Participant(s):

1) Launch internet browser by typing the URL: https://evoting karvy.com in the
address bar and click on “Enter”. The Home screen will be displayed then click on
shareholders icon in the homepage.

i) Enter the login credentials (i.e.User ID and password mentioned overleaf). Your
Folio No.DPID — Client ID will be your User ID. However, if you are already
registered with Karvy for E-voting, you can use your existing User ID and
password for casting your vote.

ii1)  Afterentering these details appropriately, click on “LOGIN™,

v)  You will now reach password change Menu wherein you are required to
mandatorily change your password. The new password shall comprise minimum
characters with at least one upper case (A-Z), one lower case (a-z), one numeric (0
-9) and a special character (@#s.etc). The system will prompt you to change your
password and update your contact details like mobile number, email ID. etc., on
first login. You may also enter a secret question and answer of your choice to
retrieve password and that you take utmost care to keep your password
confidential.

S




V)

vi)

vii)

viii)

X1)

Xii)

Youneed to login again with the new credentials.

On successful login, the system will prompt you to select the E-Voting Event
Number for VIM Limited.

On the voting page enter the number of shares (which represents the number of
votes) as on the cut-off Date under each of the heading of the resolution and cast
your vote by choosing the “FOR/ AGAINST” option or alternatively, you may
partially enter any number in “FOR” and partially in “AGAINST” but the total
number in “FOR/AGAINST” taken together should not exceed your total
shareholding as mentioned overleaf. You may also choose the option “ABSTAIN”
and the shares held will not be counted under either head. Option “FOR” implies
assent to the resolution and “AGAINST” implies dissent to the resolution.

Members holding multiple folios/demat accounts shall choose the voting process
separately for each of the folios/demat accounts.

Voting has to be done for each item of the Notice separately. In case you do not
desire to cast your vote on any specific item it will be treated as abstained.

You may then cast your vote by selecting an appropriate option and click on
“Submit”.

A confirmation box will be displayed Click “OK” to confirm else “CANCEL” to
modify. Once you confirm, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. During
the voting period, Members can login any number of times till they have voted on
the Resolution(s).

Corporate/Institutional Members (i.e other than Individuals, HUF, NRI, etc.) are
also required to send scanned certified true copy (PDF Format) of the Board
Resolution / Authority Letter, etc., together with attested specimen signature(s) of
the duly authorized representative(s), to the Scrutinizer at e-mail
ID:vtmlimited.scrutinizer@XKarvy.com. They may also upload the same in the E
-voting module in their login. The scanned image of the above mentioned
documents should be in the naming format “Corporate Name_EVENTNO.”




B)

In case a Member receives physical copy of the Annual General Meeting Notice by post
(for members whose email Ids are not registered with the Company/Depository

Participant(s) can also vote using e-voting method.

1.

i1

1.

UserID and initial password are provided overleaf.

Please follow all steps from Sr.No.(1) to (xii) as mentioned in (A) above, to cast
your vote.

Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a Member, the Member shall not be
allowed to change it subsequently. Further, the Members who have cast their vote
electronically shall not be allowed to vote again at the Meeting.

In case of any query pertaining to E-voting, please visit Help & FAQ's section
available at Karvy's website https://evoting.karvy.com.

The facility for voting through electronic means (Ballot) shall be made available at
the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and the members attending AGM who have
not cast their vote by remote E-voting shall be able to vote at the AGM through
“Ballot”.

The members who have cast their vote by remote E-voting may also attend AGM,
but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The Board of Directors has appointed Mr.I.B. Harikrishna, Practising Company
Secretary (Membership No.5302) as a Scrutinizer to scrutinize the E-voting
process in a fair and transparent manner.

The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to the paid-up value of
their shares in the equity capital of the Company as on the cut-off date), being, 30"
May, 2018.

A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories at the close of business hours on
June 15,2018 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote E-voting/ballot.

The e-voting period starts on 18" June 2018(9.00 am) and ends on 21" June
2018(6.00pm)

o
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9.

10.

11.

12.

14.

Any person who becomes member of the Company after despatch of the Notice of
the meeting and holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the User Id and
password inthe manner as mentioned below :

a.  Ifthe mobile number of the Member is registered against Folio No./ DPID -
Client ID, the member may send SMS:

MYEPWD<space> E-Voting Event Number+Folio No. or DPID - Client
ID to +91-9212993399 Example for NSDL:
MYEPWD<SPACE>IN12345612345678

Example for CDSL: MYEPWD<SPACE>1402345612345678
Example for Physical: MYEPWD<SPACE> XXXX1234567890

b.  if e-mail address or mobile number of the Member is registered against
Folio No./DPID-Client ID, then on the home page of
https://evoting karvy.com, the member may click “Forgot Password” and
enter Folio No. or DPID - Client ID and PAN to generate a password.

c. Member may Call Karvy's Toll free number 1-800-3454-001

d.  Membermay send an e-mail request to evoting@karvy.com

However, if you are already registered with Karvy for E-voting, you can use your
existing User ID and password for casting your vote.

The Scrutinizer shall within a period not exceeding three (3) working days from the
conclusion of AGM shall unblock the votes cast by remote  E-voting and Ballot, in the
presence of at least two (2) witnesses not in the employment of the Company and will
make a Consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the votes cast in favour or against, forthwith
to the Chairman of the meeting.

The Results on resolutions shall be declared at or after the Annual General Meeting of the
Company and the resolutions will be deemed to be passed on the Annual General
Meeting date subject to receipt of the requisite number of votes in favour of the
Resolutions.

The Results declared along with the Scrutinizer's Report(s) will be available on website
of the Company (www.vtmill.com) and on Karvy's website (https://evoting karvy.com).
The results shall simultaneously be communicated to Stock Exchanges.

All documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the Explanatory Statement
shall be open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company during normal
business hours (9.00 am to 5.00 pm) on all working days except Sundays, up to and
including the date of the Annual General Meeting of the Company g
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS
PURSUANTTOSECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIESACT, 2013

ftem No. 5

The provisions of Section 188 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Rule 15
Companies (Meetings of Board and its powers) Rules 2014 govern the related party
transactions and require a company to obtain prior approval of the shareholders by way
of resolution for entering into contract or agreement for transactions with related parties
for such sale, purchase or supply of goods or material and other items of transactions
exceeding the limits specified therein. In the case of transactions with M/s. Thiagarajar
Mills Private Limited, Kappalur, Madurai, the transaction for a year may exceed the
limits specified under Rule 15 of the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers)
Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the resolution under Item No.5 is placed before the members
ofthe company for their approval.

In the light of the provisions of the Companies Act 2013 and the notification issued as
stated above, the Board of Directors of the company has approved proposed transactions
along with annual limits that your company may enter into with related party for the
maximum value of transactions as mentioned in the resolutions for each financial year.

All prescribed disclosures as required pursuant to Rule 15 of Companies (Meetings of
Board and its powers) Rules, 2014, are given here-in-below for the perusal of members:-

Name of the Related Party : Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd.
Name of'the Director or Key Managerial Personnel who is related, ifany:-
Sri. T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director.
Dr. (Smt) Uma Kannan, Director.
Sri. K. Thiagarajan, Director.
Sri. A. Mariappan, Director.
Nature of Relationship: Companies under Common Control.
Nature, Duration, Material Terms, Monetary Valueand Particulars of Contract:-

Onarm's length basis and in tune with market parameters. Monetary Value as mentioned
inthe resolution setout inthe Notice.

Any advance paid or received for the contract or arrangement, if any: NIL
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6.  Manner of determining the pricing and other commercial terms both included as part of
contract and not considered as part of the contract. All proposed transactions would be
carried out as part of the business requirements of the Company and are ensured to be on
arm's length basis. Further, the Company is also subject to transfer pricing norms
prevalentin the country. |

7. Any other information relevant or important for the Board to take a decision on the
proposed transactions: NIL

The Board has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on 27.04.2018, and
recommends this ordinary Resolution set out in the Notice for approvai by the members
ofthe company as an ordinary Resolution.

Except Sri.T. Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director, Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan, Sri.K.
Thiagarajan and Sri.A. Mariappan, Directors of the Company, no other Directors and
Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are in any way
concerned or interested in the resolution.

Ttem No. 6

The Board, at its meeting held on 27" April, 2018 appointed Mr.M. Kannan, Practicing Cost
Accountant, having Membership No.9167, as Cost Auditor of the Company, in terms of Section
148 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and fixed a sum of Rs.30,000/- as remuneration
payable to him, for the financial year 2018-19.

The remuneration, as recommended by the Audit Committee and approved by the Board, is
required to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company, as per the requirements of Section
148(3) of the Companies read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules 2014.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is
concerned or interested, financial or otherwise, in the resolution set out at Item No.6.

Accordingly, the Board recommends the ordinary resolution, as set out in Item No.6, for
ratification by the shareholders of the Company.

Kappalur, Madurai By order of the Board
April, 27, 2018
Chairman




DIRECTORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED ON 31 MARCH, 2018.
To the Members of VTM Limited
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their 71" Annual Report along with the Audited

statement of accounts for the yearended 31" March, 2018.
Adoption of Financial Statements under Ind AS:

Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs dated 16" February,
2015 relating to the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has
adopted “Ind AS” with effect from 1" April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for
the year 2017-18 have been prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015.

Operating & Financial Performance Profits, Dividends & Retention

2017-18 2016-17
Tarnover - 16463 15043
Profit before Depreciation 1888 2654
(after interest)
Less: Depreciation 683 729
Profit after Depreciation 1203 1925
Less: Exceptional item 0 680
Profit after exceptional item 1265 1245
Less: Provision for Taxation:
Current Year 432 146
Deferred Tax (5 278
e 27 424
Profit after Tax 778 821
Add: Amount brought forward 456 3747
Awvailable for appropriation 5345 4568
Appropriation:-
Transfer to General Reserve 4500
Income Tax Refund of earlier years (59
Dividend @ Re.0.75 per share 302
Income Tax on Dividend &l
R 363
Transfer from Other
Comprehensive Income 1 1
Retained profit carried forward |
to the following vear 330 4567 g 11
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During the year under review, the Company's performance improved at the operational level
and the Company recorded a higher profit from the manufacturing activities of Rs.773.92
lakhs (against Rs.397.52 lakhs last year). The turnover has also increased by about 10%.
During the year, exports were at Rs.3,824.51 lakhs representing 23.41% of the total turnover.
Trading conditions were volatile throughout the year. Textile exports out of India registered a
negative trend, however the domestic consumption is showing some positive trends.

Appropriation to General Reserve

Considering the profitability and the available surplus, the Board of Directors desires to
appropriate a sum of Rs.4500 lakhs to General Reserve.

Dividend

Considering the profits for the year and as recommended by the Audit Committee, the Board of
Directors are pleased to recommend a dividend of Re.0.75 per share i.e.75% on Equity Shares of
Re.1/-each. The dividend together with dividend tax entails a cash outflow 0of Rs.363.71  lakhs
in the current year (previous year Rs.363.42 lakhs). If this is approved at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting, dividend will be deposited with the bank within the time prescribed and
dividend will be paid to those who are Members of the Company as on record date specified in this
regard. The Book Closure period being 13" June, 2018 t0 22
respect of shares held electronically, dividend will be paid on the basis of beneficial ownership as
per details furnished by the depositories.

nd

June, 2018 (Both days inclusive) in

Extract of Annual Return:

The Extract of Annual Return is furnished in Form MGT-9asper Annexure [11
Associate Company:

The company does not have any body corporate as its Associate.

Change in the Nature of Business

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.

Orders by Regulators or Courts

There were no significant and material orders passed by regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

Material Changes Affecting the Financials

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the
Company occurring between March 31, 2018 and the date of this Report of the Directors.
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Internal Control System

The Company has in place an established internal control system designed to ensure proper
recording of financial and operational information and compliance of various internal controls
and other regulatory and statutory compliances. Code on Internal Control which require that
the Directors to review the effectiveness of internal controls and compliance controls,
financial and operational risks, risk assessment and management systems and related party
transactions, have been complied with. Self certification exercises are also conducted by
which senior management certifies effectiveness of the internal control system, their
adherence to Code of Conduct and Company's policies for which they are responsible,
financial or commercial transactions, if any, where they have personal interest or potential
conflict of interest. Internal Audit has been conducted on periodical basis.

Company's Policies

Company's Policies on Corporate Social Responsibility, Remuneration, Employee Concern
(Whistle Blowing), the Code of Conduct applicable to Directors and Employees of the
Company and policies such as Insider Trading Code, Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code and
Policy on Materiality of and dealing with Related Party Transactions required under SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and SEBI (Prohibition
of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 have been complied with.

These Policies, the Code of Conduct and other policies/codes as referred above are available
on the Company's website www.vtmill.com

iSO and 88 Certification

The Company's factory at Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, Tamil Nadu has been certified I1SO for
Quality Management System Standard and also holds a 58 Certification from AOTS Alumni
55 Forum of India and GOTS Certification for the manufacture of organic cotton fabrics.

Segmentwise performance
The Company is primarily a manufacturer of textile products and is managed organizationally
as a single unit. Accordingly, the Company is a single business segment company.

Geographical (secondary) segment has been identified as domestic sales and exports as
detailed below:

Particulars Amount (Rs. lacs) % of Turnover
Export Sales 3,824.51 23.41%
Domestic Sales 12,509.78 76.59%
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Industry Structure & Developments, Opportunities & Threats, Outlook,
Risks & Concerns

The introduction of GST was a major reform. But the markets took a longer time than
expected to adjust to this change. The small traders and manufacturers have just come on line.
The advent of GST has enabled the Company to take Input Tax Credit [ITC] a feature which
was hitherto not available to your Company. Tax evasion is expected to vanish and as a result
bring in more compliance across the chain.

During the year under review, export of clothing and textile from India showed a dismal
growth. Indian manufacturers are faced with higher cost as compared to the neighbouring
countries and other competing countries,

While Government is taking a number of steps to address these concerns, your Company is
also concentrating on eliminating inefticiencies and saving cost.

The power situation continues to be comfortable on a Pan India basis and we are able to source
competitively priced power.

The Company is taking steps for development and implementation of risk management
policies. The element of risk that may threaten the company is the uncertainty in the overseas
market on which the company depends for its exports.

Further, in the domestic market there is a risk of competition from a large number of textile
units and the uncertainty of monsoon and its consequential impact on the demand scenario.

Your Directors look forward to the current year with hope and optimism as there are good
indications for a normal monsoon. This will boost the rural economy and help in increasing
demand. It will also help to boost the Indian cotton crop. These factors may improve your
company's business prospects and the profitability.

Board of Directors:

The Board consists of 8 Directors with one Chairman and Managing Director, four Non
-Executive Independent Directors, two Non-Executive Directors and one Woman Non
-Executive Director.

Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 requires a listed company to have a Managing
Director/CEOQ/Whole Time Director as one of the Key Managerial Personnel. In terms of the
provisions, Sri T. Kannan, the Chairman of the Company has been appointed as Chairman and
Managing Director duly recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
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and approved by the Board of Directors. He is already the Chairman and Managing Director of
M/s. Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited and accordingly his remuneration is fixed in such a way that
the total remuneration from both companies put together does not exceed the limits as
prescribed u/s. 197 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The details of number and dates of meetings held by the Board and its Committees, attendance
of Directors and remuneration paid to them is given separately in the attached Corporate
Governance Report.

The sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors are within the limits prescribed under the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules thereon.

Retirement of Directors by Rotation

Sri. K. Vethachalam, Director of the Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual
General Meeting and being eligible has offered himself for reappointment as a Director
of the Company. Being eligible, he is proposed to be re-appointed as Director of the
Company.

Non-Executive Independent Directors

The Non-Executive Independent Directors have confirmed and declared that they are not
disqualified to act as a Non-Executive Independent Director in compliance with the provisions
of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Board is also of the opinion that the Non
-Executive Independent Directors fulfill all the conditions specified in the Companies Act,
2013 making them eligible to act as Non-Executive Independent Directors. The Non
Executive Independent Directors have convened a meeting on 28" February, 2018.

Code of Conduct

All Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management of the Company have
confirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct applicable to the Directors and employees of
the Company. The Code of Conduct is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com.
All Directors have confirmed compliance with provisions of Section 164 of the Companies
Act,2013.

2

Directors' Responsibility Statement

The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for ensuring compliance with the
provisions of Section 134(3)(c) read with Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013
and the provisions as referred in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended on 31st March,
2018 and state that :
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in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures,
ifany;

the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and
other irregularities;

the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating
effectively and the Company has adopted proper policies and procedures for
ensuring orderly and efficient conducting of the business:

a) The management designed and implemented policies with respect to
adherence to accounting standards as a general requirement applied by a
Company in preparing and presenting financial statements.

b) The management evolved a sound system for regular evaluation of the nature
and extent of the risks to which the Company is exposed and to control risk
appropriately.

¢) The board ensured the effective financial controls, including the maintenance
of proper accounting records and the Company is not unnecessarily exposed
to avoidable financial risks. They also contribute to the safeguarding of assets,
including the prevention and detection of fraud. The financial information
used within the business and for publication is reliable.

the Directors had devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions
of all applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating
effectively.
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Key Managerial Personnel

The following persons have been appointed as Key Managerial Personnel of the Company in
compliance with the provisions of Section 203 of the Companies Act, 2013:

a)  SriT. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director
b)  SriV.Sundaramoorthy, Chief Financial Officer (upto03.06.2017) and
¢} SriR.Krishnan, Chief Financial Officer (from 01.04.2018)

d)  SriS.Paramasivam, Company Secretary

Corporate Governance

The Company has in place the SEBI guidelines pertaining to Corporate Governance. During
the year under consideration the Company had an Eight member Board of Directors consisting
of one Chairman and Managing Director, four Non-Executive Independent Directors, three
Non-Executive Directors of which one is a Woman Director.

The Corporate Governance Report giving the details as required under Regulation 34(3) read
with Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 is given separately as Annexure I and forms part of this Report of the Directors. The
Corporate Governance Certificate for the year ended on March 31, 2018 issued by
M/s.CNGSN & Associates LLP, Auditors of the Company, is also attached as part of Annexure
I'and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.

The Company has formulated Insider Trading Code and Insider Trading Fair Disclosure Code
in terms of Regulation 9 read with Schedule B and Regulation 8 read with Schedule A of SEBI
(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 respectively and provided in the company's
website at www.vtmill.com. Mr S. Paramasivam, Company Secretary, is the Compliance
Officer responsible for compliance with the Insider Trading procedures. As there was no
insider trading in the securities of the company, the company has not reported any Insider
Trading details to the Stock Exchange.

Sri T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director of the Company has given his certificate
under Regulation 17(8) read with part D of Schedule II of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 regarding the annual financial statements for the
year ended on 31st March, 2018 to the Board of Directors. The Chairman has given his
certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of the above said Regulations
in compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018,
which is attached as Annexure VIII and forms a part of this Report of the Directors.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three Independent Directors and satisfies the provisions of
Section 177(2) of the Companies Act, 2013. The Committee now comprises Mr.RM.
Somasundaram as Chairman and Mr.A. Mariappan and Mr.L.N.V. Subramanian who are all
Independent Directors. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The details
of all related party transactions are placed periodically before the Audit Committee. During the
year there were no instances where the Board had not accepted the recommendations of the
Audit Committee. The Company has in place a vigil mechanism, details of which are available
on the Company's website www.vtmill.com

The Audit Committee has also been delegated the responsibility for monitoring and reviewing
risk management assessment and minimization procedures, implementing and monitoring the
risk management plan and identifying, reviewing and mitigating all elements of risks which the
Company may be exposed to.

The Audit Committee is empowered with monitoring the appointment of Key Managerial
Personnel.

The details of terms of reference of the Audit Committee, number and dates of meetings held,
attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately in the attached
Corporate Governance Report.

Evaluation of the Board of its own performance, Committees of the Board and
Individual Directors:
The Board reviewed and evaluated its own performance from the following angles:

Company Performance
Strategy and Implementation
Risk Management
Corporate ethics
Performance of the Individual Directors
Performance of the Committees viz., Audit Committee, Nomination and
Remuneration Committee, Stakeholders Relationship Committee and Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee
The Board also evaluated the performance of the above referred Committees and
concluded that the Committees continued to operate effectively, with full participation

from all members and executive management of the Company.

The Board upon evaluation considered that the Board is well balanced in terms of diversity of
experience. The Board noted that all Directors have understood the opportunities and risks to
the Company's strategy, and are supportive of the direction articulated by the management
team towards improvement. Corporate responsibility, ethics and compliance are taken
seriously, and there is a good balance between the core values of the Company and the interests
of shareholders.
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The Directors also expressed their satisfaction in all the above areas considering the Company's
performance in all fronts viz., New Product Development, Sales and Marketing, International
business, Employee relations and compliance with statutory requirements.

Related Party Transactions:

During the year 2014-15 and in 2015-16, the company has entered into contracts or
arrangements with such number of related parties with the approval by the Board of
Directors inrespect of the following:

1. Sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials

2 Selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind
3. Leasing of property of any kind

4 Availing or rendering of any services

5. Obligations

The details in respect of the material contracts or arrangements or transactions on arm's
length basis carried on with the related parties have been furnished in ANNEXURE V.

As the contracts or agreements entered into with the related parties are expiring on 31.03.2019,
the Board proposes to consider renewal of the contracts to be entered into with related parties
for the consent of the Board of Directors and the approval of the Members of the Company at
the ensuing Annual General Meeting wherever necessary.

-

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

A Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 with
Sri T.Kannan as Chairman and M/s. K. Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaram, Directors of the
Company as Members.

The Committee met once during the year on 28" February, 2018, to review the CSR policies,
recommend for contributions for CSR Activities carried out during the year and recommend for
balance amounts to be spent for the Financial Year 2017-18.

The Committee considered the social activities as referred in Schedule VII to the Companies
Act and recognizes that its operations impact a wide community of the public for promoting
health care including preventive health care and imparting education for uplifting the social
status of the public. In structuring its approach to various aspects of Corporate Social
Responsibility, the Company takes account of guidelines and statements issued by various
regulatory bodies. Social, environment and ethical matters are reviewed by the Committee
including the impact of such matters thatmay have on the Company’s mana gement of risk.

The Company finalized the manner of implementation of the CSR Policy and spent a sum of
Rs.0.66 lakh towards conducting eye camp for the public nearby the mills as a preventive
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health care activity and contributed a sum of Rs.27.86 lakhs to a leading educational
institution for development of infrastructure facilities in the Institution. The details of the
project, amount of estimates and the contribution to the implementing agency has been shown
in Annexure VIIL

The CSR policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com

The terms of reference of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number and dates of
meetings held, attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given separately
in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment:

In compliance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition
and Redressal) Act, 2013, the Company has constituted an Internal Complaints Committee
with three employees and a NGO representative and Smt. Uma Kannan, Director of the
Company is the Adviser to the Committee. The Board also has approved the prevention of
Sexual Harassment Policy and all employees especially women employees were made aware
of the Policy and the manner in which complaints could be lodged. The Committee has
submitted its Annual Report and the same has been approved by the Board.

The following is reported pursuant to Section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013:

L. No. of Complaints of sexual harassment received NIL

2. No. of Complaints disposed off during the year NIL

3. No. of cases pending for more than ninety days NIL

4. No. of awareness programme conducted 1

5. Nature of action taken by the employer Not Applicable
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee

A Nomination and Remuneration Committee was constituted on April 24, 2014 and as on 31st
March, 2018 Sri RM. Somasundaram is the Chairman and M/s. T. Kannan, K. Thiagarajan and
A. Mariappan are Members of the Committee. The constitution satisfies the provisions of
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company Secretary is the Secretary of this
Committee.

During the year, the Committee met twice on 30.04.2017 and 02.08.2017, the first one for
reviewing the Nomination and Remuneration Policy and the second one for considering and
accepting the resignation of Mr.V. Sundaramoorthy as Chief Financial Officer.

The Company's Remuneration Policy is available on the Company's website www.vtmill.com
and annexed as forming part of this report as ANNEXUREX.

The details of terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number and
dates of meetings held, attendance of the Directors and remuneration paid to them are given
separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.

Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Shareholders and Investors Grievance Committee was constituted earlier on 26.06.2004.
To comply with the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreements with
Stock Exchanges, the name of the Committee was changed to Stakeholders Relationship
Committee effective from April 25, 2014. As on 31st March, 2017, the Members of the
Committee are Sri L.N.V. Subramanian as Chairman and  Sri T. Kannan as Member. The
Company Secretary is the Secretary of the Committee. The Committee has delegated the
responsibility for share transfers and other routine share maintenance work to the Company
Secretary and to M/s.Karvy Computer Share Private Limited, the Registrars and Share
Transfer Agents of the Company. All requests for dematerialisation and rematerialisation of
shares, transfer or transmission of shares and other share maintenance matters are completed
within 30 days of receipt of valid and complete documents. The Committee approved all
activities through Circular Resolutions and all those Circular Resolutions were placed and
discussed at the Board meetings. The Committee also reports to the Board on matters relating to
the shareholding pattern, shareholding of major shareholders, insider trading compliances,
movement of share prices, redressal of complaints, Reports on SCORES of SEBI and all
compliances under the Companies Act, 2013 and the listing agreement with Stock Exchan ges.

The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange. The Company's shares
are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN number allotted is
INE222F01029. The details of shareholding pattern, distribution of shareholding and share
prices are mentioned separately in the attached Corporate Governance Report.
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Auditors

In terms of Section 139 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereon, M/s CNGSN &
Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (Firm Regn. No. 0049155/S200036) have
been appointed as Auditors of the Company by the members at their meeting held on 23" June,
2017 and the Auditors have been appointed for a period of five years from the conclusion of 70"
Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 75" Annual General Meeting. The Auditors
have already submitted certification u/s. 141 of the Companies Act and Peer Review Certificate

inrespect of their appointment as Auditors of the Company.
Secretarial Audit

A Secretarial Audit was conducted during the year by the Secretarial Auditor,
Mr.M.K Bashyam, Practicing Company Secretary, in accordance with the provisions of
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Secretarial Auditor's Report is attached as
Annexure II and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no qualifications or
observations or remarks made by the Secretarial Auditor in his Report.

Fixed Deposits

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and as such, there are no
outstanding deposits in terms of the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

The company does not have any deposit which is not in compliance with the Companies Act,
2013.

Loans, guarantees and investments

The Company has not granted any inter-corporate loan, given guarantee or provided security
for availing loan by any other company. However the company has invested its funds in such
number of companies and in such number of shares in other bodies corporate as referred to in
Notes No. 11 and 13 ofthe Balance Sheet.

In compliance with Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, loans to employees bear interest at
applicable rates.
Counservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange

Earnings and Outgo

The prescribed particulars of Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Eamings and Outgo required under section 134(3)(m) read with Rule 8(3) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure I'V and forms a part of this Report
of the Directors.

22




h
mz%m:zy

Particulars of Employees

The prescribed particulars of Employees required under Section 134(3)(q) read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is
attached as Annexure VI and forms a part of this Report of the Directors. There are no
employees drawing remuneration more than Rs.102 Lakhs per annum or Rs.8,50,000/- per
month.

Annexures forming a part of this Report of the Directors

The Annexures referred to in this Report and other information which are required to be
disclosed are annexed herewith and form a part of this Report of the Directors :

1. Corporate Governance Report along with Certificate on Corporate  Governance
by the Auditor of the Company.

I.  Secretarial Audit Report.
III.  Extract ofthe Annual Return in Form MGT-9.

IV.  Particulars on Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo.

V. Form AOC-2 for material contracts with Related Parties.
V1. Ratio of remuneration and Particulars of Employees.
VII.  Annual Report on CSR spending.

VI Chairman & Managing Director's Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with
Part D of Schedule V to SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 on compliance of Code of Conduct.

IX.  Certificate by Chairman and Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer
under Regulation 17(8), of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 on Financial Statements.

X.  Remuneration Policy.
Appreciation

Your Directors record their sincere appreciation of the dedication and commitment of all
employees in achieving and sustaining excellence in all areas of the business. Your Directors
thank the Shareholders, customers, suppliers and bankers and other stakeholders for their
continuous support to the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,

T. KANNAN
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Kappalur, Madurai.
April 27, 2018
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Management Discussion & Analysis:
Financial Performance:

The company's Sales Turnover has gone up by Rs.1420 lakhs from Rs.15,043 Lakhs to
Rs.16,463 Lakhs, registering an increase of 9.44%. The Profit after depreciation has been
marginally down from Rs.1,245 Lakhs to Rs.1,205 Lakhs. Also despite an increase in tax
provision from Rs.144 Lakhs to Rs.432 Lakhs, the Profit after tax has been only marginally
down from Rs.820 Lakhs to Rs.774 Lakhs, as set out in the Directors' Report.

Industry Structure and Developments:

Industry structure and developments has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.
Internal Control Systems and their Adequacy:

Internal Control Systems has been elaborately stated in the Director's Report.

Human Resources:

The Company has a recruitment and training policy to meet its HR needs. The Company's
performance on the Industrial Relations front continues to be quite satisfactory.

Cautionary Statement:

Certain statements in the “Management Discussion and Analysis Report” may be forward
looking and are as required by applicable laws and regulations. Many factors may affect the
actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the future
performance and outlook — the ever present risk factors.

s ok ok ok R
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Annexure I: Corporate Governance Report 2017-18

THE COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE:

The Company believes in continuous good corporate governance and always strives to follow
the highest standards of ethics, transparency and integrity to improve the performance at all

levels, besides in achieving the company's objective of enhancing shareholder value and
discharge of social responsibility.

In VTM Corporate Governance philosophy stems from the belief that Corporate Governance is
an integral element in improving efficiency.

The company is committed to good Corporate governance and has complied in all material
aspects with the requirements specified in Listing agreement with stock exchange.

1. A Report on Corporate Governance is given below and Auditors certificate in compliance
with the provisions of Corporate Governance is enclosed separately.

2. BOARDOFDIRECTORS

2.1 Composition and Category of Directors The Board of Directors as on 27" April 2018

consists of eight Directors of which there are One Executive Director, Three Non
Executive Directors and Four Independent Directors, and thus it is in compliance with

SEBIRegulations.

The details of the composition of the Board of Directors are as follows:
Name of the Director Category Particularg
Sri T. Kannan Chairman and Executive Director

Managing Director
Dr.(Smt) Uma Kannan Director Non-Executive Woman
Director

Sri K. Thiagarajan Director Non -Executive Director
Sri RM. Somasundaram Director Independent Director
Sri L.N.V. Subramanian Director Independent Director
Sri A, Mariappan Director Independent Director
Sri_M.Murugesan Director Independent Director
Sri K.Vethachalam Director Non -Executive Director

2.2, Details of the Directors

The current composition of the Board of Directors complies with the provisions of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and the provisions
of Companies Act, 2013.

In the present Board, Sri T.Kannan, Chairman & Managing Director,

Dr. (Smt.) Uma Kannan and Sri. K. Thiagarajan are related to each other.
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2.3.

None of the Directors on the Board is a member on more than ten committees as per the
requirements of Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015. Necessary disclosures have been made by the
Directors in this regard. The Board meets at least once in a quarter to review the
performance of the Company, and also meets as and when to transact any special
business that may arise.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 149(10) of the Companies Act 2013, the
current tenure of Independent Directors of the Company has been fixed for a period of 5
consecutive years from the date of AGM held on 25" June 2014 upto the conclusion of
Annual General Meeting to be heldin 2019.Sri.K.Vethachalam Director of the
Company, retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible
has offered himself for reappointment as a Director of the Company. Heis proposed to
be re-appointed as a Director of the Company. The personal information about
Sri.K.Vethachalam is given as below:

Sri.K. Vethachalam was appointed as Director of the Company on | 5" QOctober, 2015. He
is well experienced in Textiles & allied fields. He is the Director in six other Companies,
and possesses varied experience in textiles.

Sri.K.Vethachalam does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

All Directors have certified that the disqualifications mentioned under sections 164, 167
and 169 ofthe Companies Act, 2013 do not apply to them. Independent Directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Code for Independent Directors mentioned
in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013 and that they are not disqualified to actas an
Independent Directors in compliance with the provisions of section 149 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

Code of Conduct

The Code of Conduct laid down by the company, which has been adopted by the Board
of Directors, is applicable to the Directors and all employees of the Company. This
Code of Conduct emphasizes the Company's commitment to compliance with the
highest standards of legal and ethical behaviour. The Code of Conduct is available on the
website of the Company www.vtmill.com under heading 'Investor Information' All
Directors and senior management have adhered to the Code of Conduct of the Company
during the year and have signed declarations of compliance to the Code of Conduct. The
declaration signed by Chairman and Managing Director, is given separately in the
Annual Report.
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2.4  Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

As on March 31, 2018 following shares of the Company were held by Directors:

Name Designation No. of shares
Sri.T. Kannan CMD 585600
Sri.K. Thiagarajan Director 153600
Sri RM. Somasundaram Director 60000

No other Director or Key Managerial Personnel holds any shares in the Company.

Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Attendance

During the year under review five Board Meetings were held and sitting fees have been
paid to the Directors as detailed herein:-

Date of Meeting

Director Name 300417 | 020817 | 251017 | 220018 | 28218 | Toml

(Rs)) (Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.} {Rs.) (Rs.}
Uma Kannan 2000 3000 3000 9000
K. Thiagarajan 3000 3000 3000 3800 3000 15000
RM. Somasundaram 3000 3000 3000 3000 12000
A, Mariappan 3000 3000 3000 3600 12000
L.N.V.Subramanian 3000 3000 3000 9000
M. Murugesan 3600 3000
K. Vethachalam 30600 3000 3600 3000 12000
TOTAL 18000 15000 12000 18000 9000 72000

Nositting fees paid to Sri T. Kannan as he is the Chairman and Managing Director.

The Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Board of Directors and attended all meetings of the
Board of Directors.

Board Commitfees

In line with the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI Listing Regulations
(LODR) 2015, the Company has constituted Audit Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship
Committee.

The composition, terms of reference, attendance and other details of these Committees are
mentioned later in this Report.

Directorships and Committee membership in other companies

None of the Directors on the Board is a member of more than 10 Committees and Chairman of
more than 5 Committees [as specified in Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations &

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015] across all listed companies in India of which he is a
Director.
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Independent Directors do not serve in more than 7 listed companies. Noneofthe Independent
Directors are whole-time directors in any listed Company.Directorships and Membership of
Committees in other companies held by Directors as on March,31, 2018 and the Attendance of
the Directors at the Board meetings and the Annual General Meeting is given below:

| Names of the Directors Categ | No. of Attend-ance No. of Other No. of Whether
ory Board at the last Director-ships | membersh | Chairman/
Meetings AGM held in companies | ipsin Member
attended on 23.6.2017 | other than Board
VTM Commit-
tees
Thiru T. Kannan ED 5 f 8* 5 Chairman
3 Member
Thiru K. Thiagarajan NED 5 J 3% 3 Member
Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan NED 3 2 .
Thiru RM. NEID 4 va 4 2 Chairman
Somasundaram 1 Member
Thiru LN.V. NEID 3 - 1 Chairman
Subramanian 1 Member
Thirn A. Mariappan NEID 4 7 1 Chairman
3 Member
Thiru M. Murugesan NEID 1 2 - .
Thiru K. Vethachalat NED 4 6 -

ID: Independent Director VIM — VTM LIMITED
NED-Non Executive Director. NEID-Non Executive Independent Director.

Note: * includes Directorship in 1 Company coming under Section 8 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Thiru T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director, Thiru K. Thiagarajan Director and Thiru.
RM. Somasundaram, Director have attended the Annual General Meeting held on
23.06.2017.

3. AUDITCOMMITTEE
3.1. Constitution and Composition: The Audit Committee was constituted during the

financial year 2001-2002, and reconstituted during the years 2010-11. The Audit
Committee now consists of following Directors as the members :

Director Category
Thiru RM. Somasundaram Chairman
Thiru L.N.V. Subramanian Member
Thiru A. Mariappan Member
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The Chairman and Managing Director is permanent invitee in all meetings. The
Company Secretary is the Secretary to the Audit Committee.  All Directors are
financially literate and Mr. A. Mariappan has accounting and related financial
management expertise. Besides Mr. RM. Somasundaram also has sound technical
knowledge and has finance expertise. The Statutory Auditors are invited to the meetings
to discuss with the Directors the scope of audit, their comments and recommendation on
the accounts, records, risks, internal procedures and internal controls of the Company.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Audit Committee cover all the areas
mentioned under Part C of the Schedule I to the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015 and section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. The
Board has also included in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee the monitoring,
implementing and review of risk management plan as required under Regulation 18 and
as per Part C (Role of Audit committee) of Schedule I of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
& Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015. The broad terms of reference of the
Audit Committee therefore include review of financial reporting process and all
financial results, statements and disclosures and recommending the same to the Board,
reviewing the internal audit reports and discussing the same with the internal auditors,
reviewing internal control systems and procedures, to meet the statutory auditors and
discuss their findings, their scope of audit, post audit discussion, adequacy of internal
audit functions, audit qualifications, if any, appointment / removal and remuneration of
auditors, changes in accounting policies and practices, reviewing approval and
disclosure of all related party transactions, reviewing with the management the
performance of the statutory and internal auditors and their remuneration, compliance
with listing agreements and other legal requirements and the Company's financial and
risk management plan and policies and its implementation, disaster recovery policies
and compliance with statutory requirements.

Internal Audit: The Internal Audit Department of the Company is carrying the internal
audit periodically.

Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31,2018, four meetings of the Audit
Committee were held :

Date of Meeting
Director Name 30.04.17 02.08.17 25.10.17 22.01.18 | Total
{Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs.) {Rs.) (Rs)
RM . Somasundaram 3000 3000 3000 9000
A. Mariappan 3000 3000 3000 3000 12000
L.N.V.Subramanian 3000 3000 3000 9000
TOTAL 6000 9000 6000 9000 30000

29




LIMITED

{,'i’z

Remuneration to Directors:

Total Remuneration paid to Non-Executive Directors for attending meetings of the
Board and Committees during the year ended March 31,2018 is given below :

Sitting Fees
Name of the Director (For Board & Committee

Meetings)
Thiru T. Kannan (Chairman and Managing }
Director)
Thiru K.Thiagarajan Rs.24000/-
Thiru RM. Somasundaram Rs.33000 /-
Thiru L.N.V. Subramanian Rs.21000/-
Thiru A. Mariappan Rs.33000/-
Thiru M. Murugesan Rs. 3000/-
Dr.(Smt.) Uma Kannan Rs. 9000/~
Thiru K. Vethachalam Rs.12000/-

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Constitution and Composition: The Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
constituted on April 25, 2014 in compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

Sri.RM. Somasundaram an Independent Director, is the Chairman of the Committee.
The other members are Sri. T.Kannan, and Sri. A.Mariappan.

Terms of Reference: The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee cover all the areas mentioned under Schedule I Part D of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 and Section 178 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The broad terms of reference of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee therefore include recommending a policy relating to
remuneration and employment, terms of whole time directors and senior management
personnel, adherence to the remuneration/employment policy as finally approved by the
Board of Directors, preparing the criteria and identify persons who may be appointed as
directors or senior management of the Company, preliminary evaluation of every
Director's performance, Board diversity, compliance of the Code for Independent
Directors referred to in Schedule IV of the Companies Act, 2013, compliance with the
Company's Code of Conduct by Directors and employees of the Company, reporting
non-compliances to the Board of Directors, recommending draft of the report required
under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
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Personnel) Rules, 2014 which will form part of the Directors Report to Shareholders,
monitor loans to employees and any other matters which the Board of Directors may
direct from time to time.

Attendance: During the financial year ended March 31, 2018, two meetings of the
Nomination and  Remuneration Committee was held on 30.04.2017 and on 02.08.2017
which were attended by all members. The sitting fee has been paid to the members of the
Committee as under:

The Attendance of the Directors at the Committee meetings and remuneration paid to
them are as under:

Sitting Fees
Name of the Director (Committee Meeting)
Thiru RM.Somasundaram-Chairman Rs.6,000
Thiru T.Kannan-Member -
Thiru A Mariappan-Member Rs.6,000
Thiru K. Thiagarajan — Member Rs.6,000

Remuneration Policy: During the year, the Committee reviewed the Nomination and
Remuneration Policy and as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
the policy has been approved by the Board of Directors.

The terms of reference of the Committee inter alia, include the following:
Succession planning of the Board of Directors, and Senior Management Employees;

Identifying and selection of candidates for appointment as Directors/ Independent Directors
based on certain laid down criteria; identifying potential individuals for appointment as Key
Managerial Personnel, and to other Senior Management positions;

Formulate and review from time to time, the policy for selection and appointment of
Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and senior management employees and their
remuneration;

Review the performance of the Board of Directors and Senior Management Employees based
on certain criteria as approved by the Board. In reviewing the overall remuneration of the Board
of Directors and Senior Management, the Committee ensures that the remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the best managerial talent, the
relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks and that the remuneration involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short term and long term objectives of the Company.
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Remuneration to Directors:

Sri T. Kannan, the Chairman and Managing Director of the company is entitled to a
remuneration not exceeding 5% of the Net Profits as computed w/s. 198 of the Companies Act,
2013 and accordingly a sum of Rs.55.00 lakhs has been provided as remuneration for the year
2017-18.

The Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for every meeting of the Board or
Committee thereof attended by them. They are also entitled to commission not exceeding 1% of
the net profits of the Company.

5b. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As required under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee was constituted on April 25, 2014 with Sri T.Kannan as Chairman and
Sri. K. Thiagarajan and Sri. RM. Somasundaram as Members.

The terms of reference of this Committee is to comply with the requirements of Section 135 of
the Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules,
2014 and all other relevant compliances.

The Committee met once during the year on 28" February, 2018 which was attended by
Sri.T.Kannan, CMD, Sri.K.Thiagarajan and RM. Somasundaram, Directors of the Company,
for approval of the CSR spending and excepting Sri.T.Kannan, other Directors received a
sitting fee 0f Rs.3,000/- forthe meeting.

The CSR Policy, which was approved by the Board, is available on the Company's website.
Separate Meeting of Independent Directors:

The Independent Directors of the company M/s. RM. Somasundaram, A. Mariappanand L.N.V.
Subramanian meton 22 January 2018 without the attendance of Non-Independent Directors
and members of management. They deliberated and reviewed the performance of the Non-
Independent Directors and the Board as a whole. Besides they assessed the quality, quantity
and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board
members that is necessary and essential for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform
their duties.
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6. STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

6.1

Constitution and Composition: The Share Transfer Committee was constituted on
2004, reconstituted on 2011 and was renamed as Stakeholders relationship
committee in the financial year 2014-13.

The Shareholders and Investor Grievance Committee was constituted earlier in 2004. In
order to comply with the requirements of Companies Act, 2013 and the Clause 49 of
Listing agreement with Stock exchange, the name of the Committee was changed as
Stakeholders' Relationship committee with effect from 25.04.2014, to specifically look
into the redressal of investors' complaints. It consists of two Directors namely
Sri.T.Kannan as Member and Sri.L.N.V.Subramanian as Chairman of the Committee.

The Stakeholders' Relationship Committee has through Circular resolutions, approves
the transfers, transmissions and demat requests. Mr.S. Paramasivam, Secretary of the
Company, who is also the Secretary and Compliance Officer for the Committee.

During the year nine grievances regarding non-receipt of shares applied for transfer,
non-receipt of dividend, Balance Sheet and related matters were received from the
shareholders and all were redressed. There was no transfer of shares pending for transfer
atthe close of the year.

Information on Unclaimed Dividend:

Pursuant to provisions of the Companies Act 2013, Company is committed in making timely

payment of dividend. Pursuant to provisions of Section 124 of the Companies Act 2013,

dividend that remained unpaid or unclaimed for financial year ended 31 March 2011 ,duetobe
transferred on 17.07.2018 to The Investor Education and Protection Fund (IEPF), constituted
by Central Government under Section 125 of the Companies Act 2013 will be transferred
within the time prescribed.
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Distribution of Shareholding as on 31.03.2018:

Neo. of Shares held No. of Y% of No. of % of
Shareholders Shareholders Shares Shareholding
Upto 5000 3143 90.01 2857307 7.10
5001 — 10000 154 4.41 1049631 2.619
10001 - 20000 93 2.66 1311330 3.28
20001 - 30000 43 1.23 1092090 2.75
30001 - 40000 15 0.43 539575 0.91
40001 - 50000 7 0.20 308703 0.67
50001 — 100000 19 0.54 1460854 3.82
100001 ~ above 18 0.52 31608110 78.84
Total 3492 100.00 40227600 100.00
Shareholding pattern as on 31" March 2018:

Shareholders No. of Shares held % of total shares held
Promoters 30169700 75.00
Corporate Bodies 263952 0.66
Public 9565226 23.78
NRI’s 228722 0.56

Total 40227600 100.00

The Company has not issued any ESOP to its Employees / Directors.

Dematerialisation of shares:

The shares of the Company have been dematerialized and the unique ISIN number allotted

for the Company as under:

ISIN

INE222F01029

Currently 92.72% of the total shares have been dematerialised.

The Shares held by Promoters have all been dematerialised.

[
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Listing at Stock Exchanges:

SLNo | Name of the Exchange Code Address

1 Bombay Stock Exchange Ltd 532893 Regd. Office: Floor 25, PJ
Towers Dalal Street,
MUMBALI - 400 001

TRADING SYMBOL AT BSE : VTM

Demat ISIN No. : INE222F01029

Share Price movements

Market price data : Exchange : BSE

Month HIGH LOW
Rs. Rs.

APRIL’17 : 38.00 30.50
MAY *17 34.65 30.30
JUNE ’17 34.65 29.25
JULY *17 3370 30.50
AUGUST "17 3295 27.50
SEPTEMBER ’17 31.95 29.20
OCTOBER *17 33.75 29.75
NOVEMBER 17 33.00 30.10
DECEMBER °17 35.15 29.65
JANUARY 2018 36.00 3110
FEBRUARY 18 33.40 29.00
MARCH 18 30.45 26.05

The share quotations are stated for the Re 1/- Face value of the company’s equity share.
Steck Options:  Nil,
Plant Location:  Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, Pin: 626 003

6.2 Compliance Officer : MrS, Paramasivam Company Secretary, is the Secretary of this
Committee and the Compliance Officer and his contact details are givenbelow:

Mr.S. Paramasivam,

Company Secretary

VTM Lunited

Sulakarai, Virudhunagar, INDIA
Phone : 0452 -2482595-Ext 549

Email : complianceofficer@vimill.com
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6.3 Details of Complaints from Shareholders:

No. of complaints remaining unresolved

as on 31,03.2017

No. of complaints/Requests received during the year
No. of complaints/Requests resolved during the year

O 0 N @

No. of complaints unresolved as on 31.03.2018

7.  GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

Particulars of last three Annual General Meetings are given below

AGM for the Financial Date & Time of AGM
Year ended
31" March, 2017 23" June 2017 at 12.00 Noon
31" March, 2016 27% June 2016 at 10.00 am
31* March, 2015 17" June 2015 at 11.00 am

EGM / Postal Ballot meetings:

NIL

All the resolutions set out in the AGM Notices were passed by the Shareholders
(e-voting).

The General Meeting was held at the Registered Office of the Company.

7.1 Pledge of shares held by Promoters: No pledge has been created by the Promoters
on the equity shares held as on March 31,2018.

7.2 Special resolutions:
The company has neither passed special resolution nor resolution requiring postal
ballot in the Annual General Meeting held on June 23,2017,

Atthe ensuing 71" Annual General Meeting to be held on 22" June, 2018 no resolution
is proposed to be passed by postal ballot.

7.2.1 Pursuant to section 108 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 and other
applicable requirements, voting at the 71" Annual General Meeting will be made through
electronic voting. The electronic voting period commences on 18" June, 2018 (9:00 am)
andends on 21% June, 2018 (6:00 pm) both days inclusive.

7.2.2 Scrutinizer for electronic voting : Mr. LB. Harikrishna, of Akshaya Corporate
Solutions Private Limited, Practising Company Secretaries (C.P No 5302) has
been appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the electronic voting process in a
fair and transparent manner and to give his report to the Chairman. ]
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8.2

8.3

8.4

85

8.6
8.7
8.8
8.9
8.10

DISCLOSURES:

Details of transactions with related parties have been reported in the Notes to Accounts.
All the transactions with related parties are at arm's length basis. All transactions entered
into with Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and as per
Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) 2015
during the financial year were in the ordinary course of business and on an arm's length
pricing basis.

There were no materially significant transactions with the related parties during the year,
which were in conflict with the interests of the company and that require approval of the
company in terms of SEBI (LODR) Regulations.

The Transactions with the related parties of routine nature have been reported as per Ind
AS 24 notified under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.

Disclosure of Accounting Treatment: Pursuant to the notification issued by the Ministry
of Corporate Affairs dated 16" February, 2015 relating to the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 the Company has adopted “Ind AS” with effect from
1" April, 2017. Accordingly, the Financial Statements for the year 2017-18 have been
prepared in compliance with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015.
Suitable disclosure as required by the Accounting Standards (AS1 8) has been made in
the notes to the Ind AS Financial Statements.

There were no instances of non-compliance by the Company or any penalties or
strictures imposed on the Company by stock exchanges or SEBI or any statutory
authority on any matter related to capital markets during the last three years.

The Company has in place an Employee Concern (Whistle Blower) which is also
available on the Company's website. No personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee to lodge their grievances.

Allmandatory requirements have been appropriately complied with.

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms a partofthe Directors' Report.
No presentations were made to institutional investors and analysts during the year.

The Company does not have any subsidiary or Associate,

There have been no public issues, rights issues or other public offerings during the past
five years. The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible
mnstruments.
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9.2

9.3

9.4

MEANS OFCOMMUNICATION:

Quarterly results are published in the Business Standard and the Tamil version thereof in Malai
Malar the day after the Board Meeting where the results are approved. These financial results and
quarterly shareholding pattern are electronically transmitted to the stock exchanges and are also
uploaded on the Company's website www.vitmill.com.

Shareholder communication including Notices and Annual Reports are being sent to the email
addresses of Members available with the Company and the Depositories. Annual Accounts are
sent to Members at least 25 days before the date of Annual General Meeting,

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forming part of the Annual Report is enclosed.
[Regulation 34 and Schedule V of the Listing SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations 2015.]

The Company's website:

www.vimill.com makes online announcements of Board Meeting results of the quarterly financial
results, announcement of the date of Annual General Meeting and proposed dividend, and other
announcements. Copies of Notices sent to Shareholders are also available on the website.

Address for communication :

All communication regarding share transactions, change of address, bank mandates,
nominations etc. should be addressed to the Registrars and Share Transfer Agents of the
Company at the following address :

Registrar & Transfer Agent:

Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.

(Unit: VTM LIMITED)

Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot No 31 & 32, Gachibowli,
Financial District,

Nanakramguda, Serilingampally, Hyderabad - 500 008
Ph:+9104067161518

Contact Person: Mr.D.SURESH BABU- Manager - RIS,

The sharcholders may also address their correspondence to:-
VTMLIMITED

Sulakarai

Virudhunagar-626 003,

Phone: (14562-234801

VIMLIMITED
Chairman's Office:
Thiagarajar Mills Premises
Kappalur

Madurai-625 008.

Phone: 0452-2482595 18 E
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Grievances, if any, may also be addressed to the Company Secretary at email at
complianceofficer@vimill.com

Shareholders are requested to mention their folio nos., DP-ID and Client ID in case of demat shares,
phone and mobile nos. and their Email ID so that the Company/Compliance Officer can contact them
and redress their complaints immediately. However, for instructions like change of bank mandate,
change of address, transfers & transmission of shares etc. letters duly signed by the Shareholders
concerned should be sent otherwise such requests cannot be processed by the Registrars.

Email ID of Shareholders will have to be registered with the Company to enable the Company or the
Registrars to communicate electronically.

GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Date, Time and Venue of the : 122" June, 2018 at 3.00 PM at the
Annual General Meeting. Registered Office at Sulakarai,
Virudhunagar.
2. Dates of Book Closure/Record .| Register of Members will be closed from
date for Financial Year 2017-18 13™ June to 22nd June, 2018.
3. Results for Quarter ending : | 3" Week of July, 2018.
June 30, 2018 (Provisional)
Results for Quarter ending | 3 Week of October, 201 8.
September 30, 2018
(Provisional)
Results for Quarter ending ;| 3 Week of January, 2019.
December 31, 2018 (Provisional)
Financial Calendar — 1 April 2018 . | 4™ Week of April, 2019.
To 31* March 2019 (Audited)
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Auditors' Certificate on Corporate Governance

To
The Members of VIM Limited

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by VIM Limited ('the
Company") for the year ended March 31, 2018 as per Regulations 17-27, clauses (b) to (i) of Regulation 46(2)
and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,2015 ('Listing Regulations’).

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. Our
examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the
compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on
the financial statements of the Company.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for
Special Purposes (Revised 2016) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Guidance
Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard
on Quality Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and Reviews of Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as specified in
Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and paragraphs C, D and E of
Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, as applicable.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor as to
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company.

Restrictions on use

This Certificate is issued solely for the purpose of complying with the aforesaid Regulations and may not be
suitable for any other purpose.

For CUNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0049158/ S200036

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)

Place: Madurai Partner
Date: April 27, 2018 Membership No. 027501
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Annexure Il

M.K.BASHYAM 43 ( 9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai - 625001
FCS 600 - CP.NO 3837 Phone :2338121

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED Blm March, 2018. .
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014}

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31.03.2018

To,

The Members,
VIM LIMITED
Virudhunagar

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by VIM LIMITED (hereinafter
called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me/us a
reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing
my opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of VTM LIMITED's books, papers, minute books, forms
and returns filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the company has, during the
audit period covering the financial year ended on 31.03.2018 cdmpiied with the statutory
provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made
hereinafter:

I'have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by VIM LIMITED (“the Company™) for
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai -625001
FCS 600 - CP.NO 3837 Phone :2338121

the financial year ended on 31"March 2018 according to the provisions of:

)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(a)
(b)

©

@

(e)

®

(2)

vi)

D

(i)

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA") and the rules made
thereunder;

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder
to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External
Commercial Borrowings:

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

SEBI(LODR)Regulations 2015.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and
Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an issue and Share Transfer
Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations,
2009; and

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;

Taxation Laws, Labour Laws and Environmental Laws.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of
India.

SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with
the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai -625001
FCS 600- CP.NO 3837 Phone :2338121

(iti) SEBI(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and all other re gulations of
SEBI as applicable to the Company.

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the
Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc., mentioned above

I further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Managing
Director, Non-Executive Directors, Independent Directors and a Woman Director, The changes
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review
were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequate notices were given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for
seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

The decisions of the Board have been unanimously passed.

IHurther report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that during the audit period the company has convened the Annual General
Meeting along with e-voting facility after giving required notices to the members of the
Company duly complied with the provisions of the Companies Act2013.

This report is to be read with my letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and
forms an integral part of this report.

Signature: Sd/- M.K.Bashyam
Place: Madurai Name of Company Secretary

i tice / Firm:
Date: April 14, 2018 FCS 600 CPNO 3837
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M.K.BASHYAM 43 (9A), Palmal Cross Street
Company Secretary in Practice Madurai -625001
FCS- CP.NO 3837 Phone :2338121

'Annexure A'
(To the Secretarial Audit Report of M/s. VIM Limited for the financial year ended
31/03/2018)
To,

The Members,
VTM Limited,
Sulakarai,

Virudhunagar.

My Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended 31 /03/2018 of even date is to be read
along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on my audit.

2. 1 have followed the audit practices and the processes as were appropriate to
obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the
secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct
facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and
practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the Company.

4.  Wherever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulation and happening of events efc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules,
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was
limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the Company.

14.04.2018
Madurai-625001
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Annexure — [l

Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on 31" March 2018

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies
Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

L REGISTRATIONAND OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN ;| L17111TN1946PLC003270
i) Registration Date ©27-07-1946
1ii) Name of the Company : | VIM LIMITED
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company :
v) Address of the Registered office and contact ;| SULAKARAL VIRUDHUNAGAR
details
vi) Whether listed companyYes / No 1 Yes
vii) | Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar | Karvy Computershare Pvt. Ltd.
and Transfer Agent, if any Karvy Selenium Tower B,
Plot No 31 & 32, Gachibowli,
Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Serilingampally,
Hyderabad - 500 008
Phone : 91 040 67161518
Fax : 914023420814

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated:-

SLNo. | Name and Description NIC Code of the % to total turnover of
of main products / product / service the Company
services
1 Fabrics 17115 100.00%

I PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

S.No | Name and Address of CIN/GLN Holding / % of Applicable
the Company Subsidiary / | shares held Section
Associate
NIL
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN
(Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

I) Category-wise Share Holding

Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year Mo. of Shares held at the end of the year % change in
Shareholders {as on 31 March 2017} {as on 31st March 2018) shareholding
during the

year

Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
shares shares

A. Promoters
(1} indian

- Individuals */ 585600 B 585600 1.46 585600 - 585600 1.46 -
HUF
- Gentral Govl/ - - - - - - - - -
State Govt..
- Badies Corp. 5518300 5518300 13.72 5518300 5518300 13.72 -

- Banks/Flis

- Any other -
{specify) 23038000 23038000 57.27 23038000 23038000 57.27
Partnership
Firms

Sub-total {A) (1} 29141900 29141900 7245 29141900 28141800 72.45 -
{2) Foreign

- Individuals 874200 B 874200 217 874200 - 874200 247 -
{Non Resident}
- Individuals / 153600 - 153600 0.38 153600 - 153600 0.38 -
Foreign

individuals)
- Bodies - - - - - - - - -
Corporate
- Institutions B - - - - - - - -

- Any other - - - - - - - - -
{Specify)
Sub-total {A} 1027800 1027800 2.55 1027800 1027800 2.55
(2)
Total 30168700 30165700 75.00 30169700 30168700 75.00 -
Shareholding of
Promoter (A} =
(A HANZ)

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions - - - - - - - - -

ay Mutual Funds - - - - N - N - N
b) Banks / Fi - - - - - . . - .

fy insurance Cos - - - - - B . - .

o} Fils - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total
(BYY)

2. Non-
Institutions
a) Bodies
Corp.

iy Indian 283648 47300 310948 0.77 216652 47300 263952 0.66 0.1

iy Qverseas
b} Individuals
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Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the vear No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change in
Shareholders {as on 31" March 2017} {as on 31st March 2018) sharsholding
diring the
year
Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
shares shares
1y Individual BAVREFT ZEB7860 EEECE 16,31 BEABEES | 2614060 8062619 20.04 GEE)
shareholders
haoiding nominal
share capital
Lupta Rs. 1 lakh , y
ity Individua) 1061868 4EFGG0 1544558 383 TI360067 | 2BE000 TAZADOT 383 538
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
axcess of Rs. 1
takdh
c} Gthers 153406 12600 1660086 641 228722 12600 241322 Q.60 0.19
(specify) NRis
Firms - HHO00 86000 0.16 - 88000 86000 .16 -
Sub-total GBB1140 78760 10057900 25.00 7129940 | 2027960 10057900 25.00 -
(B}(2):-
Total Public £881140 31TETE0 10057900 25.00 7129940 | 2927860 10057900 25.00 -
Shareholding
(By=(B)(1)+
(B}(2)
C. Shares held - - - - - - - -
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs
Grand Total 37050840 3176760 | 40227600 100.00 37050840 | 2927960 | 40227600 100.00 B
(A+BFC)
i) Shareholding of Promoters
st Shareholder's Name Shareholding at the beginning Share holding at the endof the year
N;. of the year
Neo, % of total %of No. % of total | %of Shares % change in
of Shares Shares of | Shares of Shares of | Pladged/ share
the Pledged | Shares the encumbered to | holding
company / company total durirg the
encumb shares year
ered to
total
shares
1 1. Kannan 585600 1.46 - 585600 1.486] - -
2 [Radha Kannan 874200 2.17 - 874200 2.17 - -
3 K.Thiagarajan 15360 0.38 - 153600 0.38 - -
4 [Thiagarajar Mills Pvt Ltd 2678000 6.66 - 2678000 6.66 - -
5 [LKannan, Partner, 7520000 18.69 - 7520000 18.69 - -
Guruvayoorappan
Investments
& [TKannan, Partner, Avittam 7500000 18.64 - 7500000 i8.64 - -
Investments
7 [T.Kannan, Partner, 6190000 15.39 - £190000 15.39 - -
Karumuttu Investments
8 T.Kannan, Partner, 1828000 4.54 - 1828000 4.54 - -
Thirumagal Investments
9 [Sree Thiagaraja Finance Pvt 1504000 3.74 - 150400 3.74 - -
Ltd
10 [Sree Devi Karumari Finance 1336300 3.32 - 1336300 3.32 - -
Pvt Lid
30169700 75,00} 4] 30169700 75.00 o -
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(iii)  Change in Promoters' Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change) -
There is no change in promoters’ Shareholding
(iv)  Sharcholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and
Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
S1 No. Share Cumulative
holding at share
beginning holding
during the
Year
No. of % of Total No. of % of Total
shares Sh capital shares Sh capital
of company of company
1. Anil Kumar Goel
At the beginning of year 400443 1.00
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year - -
Date
At the end of the year 400443 1.00
2. L.RM.K. Valliappan
At the beginning of year 183000 0.45
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
Date Buy/(Sell)
At the end of the year 183000 045
3. Vinay Kumar Gupta 165000 0.41
At the beginning of year
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
At the end of the year 165000 041
4 Lalitha Narayanan
At the beginning of year 159500 0.40
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
At the end of the year 159500 0.40
5.K.S.Gopalaswamy & Ranjani
Gopalswamy
At the beginning of year 150000 0.37
Date wise Inc/Dec during the year
At the end of the year 150000 0.37
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6. S.Kasi Viswanathan

At the beginning of year

150000

0.37

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

150000

0.37

7. L.LRM.K.Subramanian

At the beginning of the year

120000

0.30

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

120000

0.30

8. S.N. Rajan

At the beginning of year

216612

0.54

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

Date Buy/(Sell)

07.04.2017 (Sell)

(98565)

-0.24

118047

0.30

28.10.2017 (Sell)

(14130)

0.03

103917

0.27

23.03.2018 Buy

6550

0.01

110467

0.28

At the end of the year

110467

0.28

9.Vinod Chandra Mansukhlal Parekh

At the beginning of the year

92335

0.23

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

92335

0.23

10. Amit Aravind Gunderia

At the beginning of the year

Date wise Inc/Dec during the year

At the end of the year

90759

0.23

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Name of the Director
/ KMP (M/s)

Opening
Balance
{% of the
total share
capital)

Date of
Dealing

Purchase
or Sales

No.of
shares

%% of totat
shares of
the
Company

Cumulative

Closing Balance

No. of
shares

% of total
shares of the
Company

Ne. of
shares

Yo of total
shares of the
Company

T. KANNAN

385600

585600

1.46

K, THIAGARAJAN

153600

153600

038

UMA KANNAN

RM.
SOMASUNDARAM

60000

60000

0.15

LNV
SUBRAMANIAN

A, MARIAPPAN

M. MURUGESAN

K. VETHACHALAM

¥ i ¥ )

i ] ¥ i)

4 1 ] +

S. PARAMASIVA M-
C8

V.SUNDARAMOOR
THY-CFO *

-*V.SUNDARAMOORTHY-CFO was employed for part of the year 61l 03.06.2017.
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V. INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans
excluding
deposits

Unsecured
Loans

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

indebtedness at
the beginning of
the financial year

i) Principal
Amount

i) Interest due
but not paid

iit) Interest
accrued but not
due

104631893

104631893

Total (i-+ii+iii)

104631893

104631893

Change in
Indebtedness
during the
financial year
- Additien

+ Reduction

41965506
(34833779)

41965506
(34833779)

Net Change

7131727

7131727

Indebtedness at
the

end of the
financial year
i) Principal
Amount

ii) Interest due
but not paid

iii) Interest
accrued but not
due

111763620

111763620

Total (i+ii+iii)

111763620

111763620
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VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director:

SLNo

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Managing Director

T.Kannan

- o

Total
Amount

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per prov isions
contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites ws
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income
tax Act, 1961

NA

Stock Option

NA

Sweat Equity

NA

Commission

- as % of profit
- others, specify

55,00,000

55,600,000

Others, please specify

Total (A)

55,00,600

55,00,000

Ceiling as per the Act

60,02,000

60,02,000
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B. Remuneration to other Directors:

Particulars of
Remuneration

Name of Directors

RM.Somasundaram

LN.V.Subramanian

AMariappan

M.Murugesan

Total
Amount

1. Independent
Directors

- Fee for attending
Board meeting

. Committee
Meetings

- Commission

- Others, please
specify

12000

21000

G000

12000

12000

21000

3000

36000

54000

Tota} (1)

33000

21006

33000

3000

6060

T.Kannan

K.Thiagarajan

Uma Kannan

K.Vethachalam

2. Other Non-
Executive
Directors

- Fee for attending

. Board meeting
Committee
Meetings

- Commission

- Others, please

specify

15000

9000

12000

36000

9000

Total {2)

24000

9600

12000

Total (By=(1+2)

45000

42000

15000

135000

Total Managerial
Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as
per the Act

6002000
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN
MD / MANAGER /WTD

SiNo Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
CEO CFO Company Total
Secretary

I. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in

section 17(1) of the Income-

tax Act, 1961 1,97,256 4,12,052 6,09,308
(b) Value of perquisites u/s Till
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 03.06.2017

(c) Profits in lieu of salary
under section 17(3) Income-
tax Act, 1961

2. Stock Option

3, Sweat Equity

4, Commission
- as % of profit
- others, specify

5. Others, please specify -

Total 1,97,256 4,12,052 6,09,308

- Mr.V.Sundaramoorthy CFO was employed for part of the vear.

VH. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of Brief Details of Authority Appeal
the Description Penaliy / [RD/NCLT / | made,
Companies Punishment/ COURT] if any
Act Compounding {give

fees imposed Details)

A, Company

Penaity Nil

Punishment Nil

Compounding | Nil

B. Directors
Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty Nil
Punishment Nil
Compounding | Nil
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ANNEXURE-IV TO THE DIRECTORS' REPORT

Particulars furnished pursuant to the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

1. STEPSTAKENFORCONSERVATION OF ENERGY:

a)

b)

Installation of Energy Efficient Air Compressor:

During the year, the company has proposed to undertake an air audit in compressor
air system at an estimated cost of Rs.40.00 lakhs, the benefits of it is expected to
save the cost of power in the coming years.

Improvement in working of Humidification Plant:

Last year, the company optimized the supply and exhaust of airflow systems by
fine tuning the Humidification. This had a good effect in power saving benefit and
such power saving during the year is better.

During the year, the company replaced the Humidification Ducts made of Gl
Sheets by FRP ducts at a cost of Rs.23.81 lacs. By this modernization of
Humidification Plant, the leakage in air has been curtailed and by this method, the
humidity control is better.

7. STEPS TAKEN FOR ALTERNATE SOURCES OF ENERGY &
CONSERVATION OF EQUIPMENTS.

a)

The company has constantly taken efforts for Green Energy by installation of 4
Nos. Wind Turbine Generator at a Capital Outlay of Rs.2325 Lakhs during the last
ten years which saves substantial power cost.
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A. POWER AND FUEL CONSUMPTION

1. Electricity
Purchased:

a)

b)

d)

Note:

1.

Units

Total amount

Rate per unit

(Including Maximum demand

charges)

Own Generation:

Through Diesel Generator

Units

Units per litre of oil

Cost per unit

Through Windmill:
Produced Units
Availed Units

Through an Independent

Power Producer

Units

Rate per unit

CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF
PRODUCTION OF CLOTH:

Electricity per Metre
of production of cloth

Rs.
Rs,

Rs.

Rs.

for each variety or sort are not given.

9,34,409
2.06,04,627

22.05

2018

164,512
3.02
17.57

A

3 i

~.}

L Lol
=

~d -3

Lt

g e
e el
S

97,32,366
5.08

oo
1
EA

No standard rate of consumption is available.
2. Asthe company is producing numerous varieties or sorts of cloth, separate details

Rs.
Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

Rs.

31.3.2017
11,88,037

2,26,75,975
19.09

2017

2,20,077
3.05
14.80

66,61,463
66,61,463

83,91,776
5.64

4.49
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTIONAND RESEARCHAND DEVELOPMENT:

The company has proposed to install one number Karl Mayer Warping and Sizing
Machine at an estimated cost of Rs.678.67 lakhs and the work is in progress and the
same will be fully installed in the Financial Year 2018-19. This would help in
achieving higher productivity and is cost efficient.

Further, in order to have improved value added product, the company has installed 16
Nos. Pattern Makers at a total cost of Rs.38.24 lakhs. The benefits will be seen in the
future years.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGSAND OUTGO:

The company has earned during the year under report foreign exchange equivalent to
Rs.3789.16 Lakhs (FOB value of exports) through direct exports.

The foreign exchange outgo during the period is Rs.838.53 Lakhs.

The company is striving to expand the export market segment by broadening its

geographical sweep.
Kappalur, Madurai For and on behalf of the Board of Directors,
27" April, 2018 CHAIRMAN
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PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION TO DIRECTORS
AND KEY MANAGERIAL P

-

ANNEXURE VI

ERSONNEL IN TERMS

OF RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT & REMUNERATION) RULES, 2014.

SNe Particulars Details
L. The ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the Rs. in lakhs
median remuneration of the employees of the company
for the financial year; Name ofthe | Designation | Remuneration |  Ratioto
Ditector Median
Remuneration
81 T. Kannan Chairman & 55.60 5288
Managing
Director
2. | The percentage increase in remuneration of each
Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Nane of the Designation Remuneration | Percentage
Officer, Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the Director (M/s.) increase in
financial year; Remuneration
2016-17 1 2017-18
Sri T, Kannan Chairman & | 5500 | 5500 |-
Managing
Director
Mr V. Chief 742 1.97 {-173.45%
Sundaramoorthy | Financial
{upto 03,06.2017) | Officer
S S Company | 3.93 413 05.09%
Paramasivam Secretary
3 The percentage increase in the median remuneration of
employees in the financial year, Year 2016-17 2017-18 Increase
Median 106 1.04 {-}1.89%
Remuneration
4. The number of permanent employees on the rolls of 503
company;
5. Average percentile increase already made in the
salaries of employees other thau the managerial . Details 201617 2017-18 increase
personnel in the last financial year and its Hmployee cost 103595 1157.20 1170 %
comparison with the percentile ncrease in the (Excluding
managerial remuneration and justification thereof FemUREration 1o
and point out if there are any exceptional Disectors )
N for in the managerial gf::g;:amn . 55,00 5500 -
6. Affirmation that the remuneration is as per the Yes at all times,
remuneration policy of the company.

Particulars of employees as per Rule 5(2) of the Companies

(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules 2014.

NIL

58




(VTM o)

ANNEXURE VI

Particulars of Corporate Social Responsibility activities carried out by the Company
in terms of Section 135 of the Act, 2013

1.

Abriefoutline of the Company's CSR policy:

This policy encompasses the Company's philosophy for giving back to society as a
corporate citizen and lays down the guidelines and mechanism for undertaking socially
useful programs for the transformation and sustainable development of the rural
communities at large.

2. Overview of projects or programs proposed to be undertaken:
Focus areas relating to eradication of hunger and poverty, economic development,
quality education, health care, conservation of environment and the creation,
maintenance of infrastructure.
3. Web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs - http://www.vtmill.com/CSR
-Policy.pdf
4. Composition of the CSR Committee.
Name of the Director (M/s.) Designation Status
Sri T. Kannan Chairman and Managing | Chairman
Director
Sri K. Thiagarajan Non-Executive Director Member
Sri RM. Somasundaram Independent Director Member

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years Rs.1425.84 lakhs
Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount as in item 5 above)  Rs. 28.52 lakhs

Details of CSR spent during the financial year Rs.28.52 lakhs
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year Not Applicable
(b) Amount unspent, if any
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(¢) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

S.No. | Name of the Implementing Agency:
1. Project No.1 Direct - Public eye camp at
Virudhunagar.
2. Project No.2 - Corpus Contribution to Thiagarajar College, Madurai
an Educational Institution
1 CSR Project or activity identified - (i) Eradicating hunger, poverty, promoting
Reference to Item No. to Schedule VII preventive health care and sanitation and
making available safe drinking water;
(iiy Promotion of Education, including
special education and employment enhancing
vocational skills especially among children,
women and livelihood enhancement projects;
(iii) Promoting gender equality, empowering
women and measures for reducing
inequalities faced by socially and
economically backward groups;
(iv) ensuring environment sustainability,
ecological balance, animal welfare,
agroforestry, conservation of natural
resources and maintain quality of soil, air and
water;
(v) rural development projects
2 Sector in which the Project is covered Project I ~ Promoting preventive Health Care
by conducting Eye Campnear Mills
Premises.
Project 1F Promotion of Education by
Conservation of buildings, renovation of
class -rooms and construction of auditorium
in the college premises.
3 Areas in which Projects / Programmes
undertaken:
4 Local Area / Others: Project I - Local Area
Project Il - Other Area
State & district : Project I - Tamil Nadu: Virudhunagar Dt
Project Il ~ Tamil Nadu: Madurai District
Amount outlay (budget) project or Project I - Rs. 0.66 lakh
program-wise: Project 11 - Rs,27.86 lakhs
5 Amount spent on the projects or Project I - Rs. 0.66 lakh
programines: Project 11 - Rs.27.86 lakhs
6 Sub-heads:
Direct expenses On projects / programs: Project I - Rs. 0.66 lakh
Project 1] - Rs. 27.86 lakhs
Overheads:
7 Cumulative expenditure upto the reporting | Project 1~ Rs. 0.66 lakh

period:

Project II - Rs. 53.07 lakhs
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In case the company has failed to spend the 2% of the average net profit of the last three
financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not
spending the amount in its Board report.

Not applicable

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the
Company.

To discharge the duties cast under provisions of the Act, members of the CSR Committee
visit the place where the project is undertaken. Chairman also has regular reviews of the
progress made and the work done.

For and on behalf of the Board

Chairman & Managing Director and
Chairman of CSR Committee
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Annexure Vil

Chairman & Managing Director's Certificate

Annual Certificate under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the
SEBI (Listing obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015

DECLARATION

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V to the SEBI (Listing
obligations and disclosure requirements) Regulations, 2015, I hereby declare that all the
Board members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied with the
Code of Conduct of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018.

T. Kannan
Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure IX

Compliance Certificate under Regulation 17(8) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

We, T. Kannan, Chairman and Managing Director and R. Krishnan, Chief Financial Officer of
the Company certify that -

A.  We have reviewed Financial Statements and Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
31.3.2018, and that to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i)  these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that mightbe misleading;

(i) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and
are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

B.  There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company's code
of conduct.

C.  We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial
reporting and we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control systems of the
company pertaining to financial reporting and we have disclosed to the Auditors and the
Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of
which they are aware and the steps they have taken or propose to take to rectify those
deficiencies.

D.  Wehave indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that:

(1)  there are no significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during
the year.

(i) the company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) in terms of
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 for the current financial
year and the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) there are no instances of fraud of which we became aware and the involvement
therein if any of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
company's internal control system over financial reporting.

T. KANNAN
CHAIRMAN AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

Date: 27.04.2018 R. Krishnan
Place: Madurai Chief Financial Officer
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Annexure X : Remuneration Policy

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises the Chairperson and Non-Executive
Directors of the Company out of which at least one-half are Independent Directors and as such
complies with the obligations of the Companies Act, 2013 and the corporate governance
requirements of the Listing Agreement with stock exchanges. The Chairperson of this
Committee is an Independent Director. The Chairperson of the Board of Directors is a member
of this Committee but will not Chair this Committee.

The Committee operates under formal terms of reference which were approved by the Board
on April 29, 2014. These terms of reference have been prepared in a manner to generally
maintain overall continuity with the nomination and remuneration policies of the company
while complying with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Agreements with stock
exchanges.

Role and Responsibilities

The Committee's foremost priorities are to ensure that the Company has the best possible
leadership and maintains a clear plan for both Executive and Non-executive Director
succession. The Committee also reviews senior management succession. Its prime focus is
therefore on the strength of the Board and the senior management team and ensuring that
appointments are made on merit, against objective criteria, selecting the best candidate for the
post. The Committee advises the Board on the appointments, retirements and resignations from
the Board and its Committees. It also advises the Board on similar changes to the senior
management of the Company.

The Committee and its members are empowered to obtain outside legal or other independent
professional advice, at the cost of the Company, in relation to its deliberations and to secure the
attendance at its meetings of any employee or other parties it considers necessary.

Criteria for appointments and independence of Directors

When considering appointments to the Board and its Committees, the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee will draw up a specification for the role taking into consideration the
balance of skills, knowledge and experience of its existing members, the diversity of the Board
and the Company's ongoing requirements. The Company believes that diversity underpins the
successful operation of an effective Board and embraces diversity as a means of enhancing the
business.
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The recruitment process then focuses on appointing candidates who meet the criteria, who have
the relevant professional knowledge, professional qualifications and experience. Successful
candidates are likely to have demonstrable leadership qualities and interpersonal
communication skills, act with integrity and have international business exposure.

Care is taken to ensure that all proposed appointees have sufficient time available to devote to
the role, are compliant with the rules, policies and values of our Company and do not have any
conflicts of interest.

On appointments or promotions the Committee will typically use the Remuneration Policy of
the Company to determine ongoing remuneration. However, the Committee retains the
discretion to make appropriate remuneration decisions outside the Standard Policy to meet
specific circumstances.

Remuneration Policy

The overarching philosophy for remuneration within the company is to attract, retain and
motivate individuals of the caliber necessary to successfully implement the Company's
business strategy. In particular, this means ensuring that incentive plans are appropriate to
encourage enhanced performance and to avoid rewarding underperformance. In viewing and
setting Company's remuneration policy, the Committee seeks to balance the interests of its
employees and those of its stakeholders, to support Company strategy and foster a high
performance culture, where a meaningful portion of remuneration is performance linked.

Remuneration Policy for Managing Director:

An appropriate level of remuneration may be set to ensure that the Company can appoint
Managing Director of the necessary skill and experience by offering him market competitive
remuneration reflecting his individual experience, role and contribution. The appointment may
be for a tenure of such years from the date of his appointment not exceedin g the period in terms
of Section 196 and as prescribed under Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013. The
individual's performance will be reviewed annually by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee and recommended to the Board enabling it to decide the remuneration payable to
the Managing Director.

The total remuneration package may be designed to provide an annual remuneration payable
by way of commission and other perquisites as decided by the Board of Directors however, not
exceeding 5% of the net profits of the company computed in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 198 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as determined by the Board of Directors of the
Company for each financial year within the maximum permissible limit. Further, in the event
of his being Managing Director in any other company, such remuneration shall not exceed the
higher maximum limit admissible from any one of these companies, in terms of Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013,
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The Managing Director is not entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of Director or the
Committees where he will be the Chairman/Member. He is entitled to have Chairman's Office
at his convenience at company's expenses.

Remuneration Policy for Non-Executive Directors

Non-Executive Directors are entitled to sitting fees for attending meetings of the Board or its
Committees at rates which are within the limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013.
They are also entitled to commission on net profits, as determined by the Board from time to
time, not exceeding 1% of the net profits of the Company for that year. The level of
remuneration is set to attract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the necessary skill and
experience by offering them market competitive remuneration.

Non-Executive Directors do not participate in Board discussions which relate to their own
remuneration. They receive reimbursement of reasonable expenses incurred in attending the
Board, Committee and other ad hoc meetings.

None of the Non-Executive Directors is entitled to receive compensation for loss of office at
any time or participate in any retirement plans.

Non-Executive Independent Directors are appointed in compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2013 and must adhere to the Code for Independent Directors laid down under
Schedule IV to the Companies Act, 2013 and retain their independence during the entire tenure
of appointment as an Independent Director. The terms of service of Non-Executive
Independent Directors are contained in letters of appointment issued to them after their
appointment at a general meeting of the Company. The current policy for Non-Executive
Independent Directors of the Company is to serve for a maximum period of two terms of five
years each, with review at the end of the first five year term, subject always to mutual
agreement and annual performance evaluation.

Remuneration is paid subject to deduction of Income Tax at source and payment of applicable
Service Tax/ GST.

Remuneration to Senior Management Personnel

An appropriate level of remuneration is set to ensure that the Company is able to recruit and
retain senior management with the necessary skills, professional qualifications, experience,
international exposure and compliance with the rules and policies of the Company. Market
competitive remuneration is offered to individuals reflecting their experience, role and
contribution within the Company. The individual's performance is reviewed from time to time
with changes in remuneration normally. In considering any increase in base salary the
Committee will mainly consider the role, changes in job scope, responsibility and complexity
and the need to maintain market competitiveness. Total remuneration package is designed to
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provide an appropriate balance between fixed and variable components with a focus on long
term variable pay so that strong performance is incentivised but without encouraging excessive
risk taking.

Remuneration arrangements of Senior Management Personnel consist of the same elements as
those of other employees i.e. Basic Salary, HRA and other allowances, retirement benefits (ie.
Provident Fund and Gratuity as per the Company's Schemes applicable to all employees) and
perquisites as per Rules of the Company applicable to all employees according to their
seniority including corporate club membership, insurance, car and fuel perquisites.

As applicable to all employees, Senior Management Personnel are entitled to avail themselves
of 30 days leave in a year and un-availed leave can be accumulated as per the rules of the
Company up to a maximum of 30 days.
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of VIM Limited
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of VIM Limited, (“the Company”),
which comprise of the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018, and the Statement of Profitand Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and a summary of the significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's board of directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134 (5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 ofthe Actread with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. In
conducting our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and
auditing standards and matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder and the Order issued under section 143
(11)ofthe Act.

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143 (10) of the Act. Those Standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstaterent.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal financial control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the Company's
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of thefinancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on thefinancial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2018, and its profit, total

comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended as on that
date.

Reporton Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by

the Central Government in terms of Section 143 (11) of the Act, we give in Annexure
“A” astatement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)  we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of ourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b)  inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢)  thebalance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with
by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d)  in our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act;
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e)  on the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2018 taken on record by the board of directors, none
of the directors are disqualified as on March 31, 2018 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f)  with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer
to our separate report in Annexure “B”. Our report expresses an unmodified
opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company's internal
financial controls over financial reporting; and

g)  with respect to the other matters to be included in the auditors' report in
accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i, The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial positioninits financial statements —refernote no.;

ii. The Company has made provisions, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term
contracts including derivative contracts; and

fii. There hasbeen no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred,
to the investor education and protection fund by the Company.

Other matters

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2017 prepared
in accordance with Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006, were audited by another
firm of chartered accountants under the Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report dated April
30,2017, expressed an unmodified opinion on those financial statements

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0049158/ $200036

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Place: Kappalur, Madurai Partner
Date: April 27, 2018 Membership No. 027501
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Annexure “A” to thelndependent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

section of our report to the members of VTM Limited of even date)

Inrespect of the Company's fixed assets:

(a)

®

(c)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

The Company has a program of verification to cover all the items of fixed assets in
a phased manner which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed
assets were physically verified by the management during the year. According to
the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the records examined
by us and based on the examination of the conveyance deeds provided to us, we
report that, the title deeds, comprising all the immovable properties of land and
buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company as at the
balance sheet date. In respect of immovable properties of land and building that
have been taken on lease and disclosed as fixed assets in the financial statements,
the lease agreements are in the name of the Company.

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In
our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable.

According to information and explanation given to us, the company has not
granted any loan, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited liability
partnerships or other parties covered in the register required under section 189 of
the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (iii) of the order is not
applicable.

In our opinion and according to information and explanation given to us, the
company has not granted any loans or provided any guarantees or given any
security to which the provision of section 185 of the companies Act are applicable.
Inrespect of investments made by the Company, the Company had complied with
the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not accepted any deposits and accordingly paragraph 3 (v) of the
order is notapplicable.
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6.  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company had maintained cost records under section 148 (1) (d) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the relevant rules prescribed. However, we have not carried out a
detailed examination of the same.

7. According to the information and explanations given to us, inrespect of statutory dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, includingProvident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax,
Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Value Added Tax, Customs
Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it
with the appropriate authorities.

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees' State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise Duty, Cess and
other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2018 for a period of
more than six months from the date they became payable.

(¢)  Details of dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Excise Duty, Value
Added Tax and Goods and Service Tax which have not been deposited as at

March 31, 2018 on account of dispute are given below:

TN VAT Act 160,568

2001-02
Service Tax | Auxiliary Service 9,78,499 | 2006-07 to CESTAT,
2011-12 Chennai
Service Tax Penalty 16,07,956 | 2006-07 to CESTAT,
2011-12 Chennai

8. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to its bankers during the year.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has no
outstanding dues to any financial institutions or any government or any debenture
holders during the year.

9. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the term
loans taken by the Company have been applied for the purpose for which they were
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12.

13.

raised. The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company by its officers or
employees has been noticed or reported during the year.In our opinion and according to
the information and explanations given to us, the Company has paid/provided
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the
provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. The Company is not a Nidhi
Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in
compliance with section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such
transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the
applicable accounting standards.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid/provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause 3 (xii) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination
of the records of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with section 177 and 188 of the Act. Where applicable, the details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the financial statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

For CNGSN & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No.004915S/ S200036

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)

Place: Kappalur, Madurai Partner
Date: April 27, 2018 Membership No. 027501
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor's Report

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (f) under 'Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'
section of our report to the Members of VIM Limited of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of VIM Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2018, in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies
Act,2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
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internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement in the financial
statements, whether due to frand or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial control system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detai 1,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management of override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has,
in all material respects, an adequate internal financial control system over financial reporting
and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.0049158/ S200036

(CHINNSAMY GANESAN)
Place: Kappalur, Madurai Partner
Date: April 27, 2018 Membership No. 027501
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Statement of cash flows for the vear ended March 31 , 2018

(Al amounts are in INR Lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Particulurs

Frr the vear ended
Mipreh 31, 101%

For the year ended
March 31, 2817

Cush Flow From Operaling Activiies

Brofit befire Invome tax 124572
Adjusiments for
Deprecialion apd smorisation sxpense 72815
ProRty Loes on sate of Seec aseet {548.88)
(Profl)f Loss on sale of investmpnt 495 93
Finanos oosls 5138
Ealr vakie changes of investemoents considered 1o ot and inss {1.87)
inlgrest income (13.43)
Dividend inoome {7341}
Defarrad Income of govermnant qranis {43.83)
111994
Charge In operating assets and linbiities
{intreass) Georaase inloans and advances {42 4
{ranss) decreass in other fnancie assats HeR R 153
{innrensey decrense i other assels 0.3
finsremsal decheasg Ip inventoties 212
tnuramsay decreass i eds recaivables 337
fnoteased (dacrease} in provisions and other fabilites A2
Incremse! (derreass] b frade payailes 230,37
Cash g ites] oot 135 60
Less © inoome taxes paid (nel of refunds) {182,386
Net cash fron operating sotivities (A} 54108 4. 738.25
LCash Flows From nvesting Sotivities
Purchass of PRPE {inchuding changes in SWP) 218008
Sale provescs of PPE fncluding changes i GVIP) 73,80
{Purchase) disposal proceeds of Investments Inar-oumrensy 4B
{Purchasel dispossl procesds of Invesiments {oinrend) 8,365 97
(nvestenents o/ Maturity of fixed deposits with banks 2131
{Hvidend mame 9341
Interest incame 1145
Mot cash used in investing sutivities ) 42887 {6, 060.75)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Froceeds fromd frapayment of) long term borowings a4 24
Finanes cosia {51,163
Eivitdeng puwd -
et sash from! fused In} Hrancing activities (©) 19308
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalonts (A+B+3) 2R {3.978.42)
ash et cash equivalents at the beginning of the fingnoial year 3 4,007 15
Cash and cash souivelants 5t end of the yoar AE0.50 877
Motes @ 1. The abdve cash flow stalement has bean preparad under indirect reethod proscribed in Ind AS 7 "Cash Flow Statements”,
2. Componsnts of cash a0d cash equivatants
Balunos with banks
- 31 CuErRnt gooountis 7683
Lash on hang .84
em s s S

For and on bebalf of the bonrd

T Knnnan BM. Somasunilaram
Chadrpngn & Mensging Direotor Dreeeior
B Krishneg &, Peramasivam

Chaef Financial oo
Page © Bappabor, Madurai
Dapte o Apetl 27, 2018

Company Seoreiary

As per our Tepert of oven dete attuohesd
For UNGEN & Assochates LLY

Chavtered Acooumans

{Firm Registration Mo, (04%1 558/ Sa00055)

Chinnssmy Sanesan

Pariner

Membership No 027304




Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2018
(A1l amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

A gt As ag As
Motes Murch 31, M8 Mareh 31, 2817 Aprll 1, 2816
AREETE
Honecurend 2ssety
Property, plant and siuipment 4 R 784898
Capih work i progrss 5 - -
Financial asgels
wvesiments § 195052 178041
Lowns ¥ 447 3B
Ciher Tnancia! aasels 8 104,02 70.82
Oiher non-current asuels § g -
Total ner-current assels it T 95,68 R T T T
Current susels
nsentories 16 ZAZEAD 245232 234444
Finanoial a5l
nvasimants 11 480187 -
Trade rocaivabios 2 204462 234893
Gagh and cash equivalents ! BT 400798
Bark balances ofher han above td 342 a7l
Loang ‘g B38.08 46397
{ther current assels i 2] 038
Tedat current susels HLARE LY R.765.58 4,755 .58
Total Assets 2EAB0TT pokr A 15.918.10
BEORHTY ARD LABILITESR
Equity
Fity share capital 17 46228 40228
Ciner sty 18 &, ¥ 747878 16507 80
Total equily 18,588.77 1r.881.04 a8
Lishifities
Hosecurrerd Habiities
Finanviad llabiitiag
Borroeings 1 R4 5400
Oiitser fnanciy) labiites % 2 143,583
Ueferred Tax Lisbies (pel) 2 1,262.58 BU8 A2
Total nop-curesn uilitles §HER 204014 1.297.85
Lurman? Habiitios .
Firarcisl bebites
Trade paysbles s 442 55 el
{aher foancis Babilitios 2 283 212
Char curment labilities 24 5243 378.35
Short Term Provisions 25 1593 11554 1207
Yotal currend Hahilitles B34 85 1,062,726 T3
Total babilites 7,384.00 R LT ] 200802
Yotal Suuity and Lisbilties 24 48577 20,592.44 18.916.50

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date aftached

For and on behalf of the board For ONGSN & Assoclates LLP

Chartered Accountants

T. Kannan RM. Somasundaram {Firm Regisiragion No 0049158/ 8200036}

Chairman & Managing Director DHrgctor Chinnsamy Ganesan

Partner

R Krishnan 8. Paramasivam Membership No 827501
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

Place : Kappahur, Madurai

Date © April 27, 2018 -
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Statement of profit and loss for the vear ended March 31, 2018
{All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Notes  For the vesr ended  For the vear ended
Miarch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017

Continuing Operatlons

A Invoms
Revenue from operations 26 1646282 15,042.81
Other income 7 51952 1.614.74
Total income 16,982.34 18,857 55
8 Erpenses
Gost of malerials consumed 28 1178663 10,374.91
Changes i lnventoriss of work-in-progress, stook In trade
and finished goots 24 124.23
Employee Benefits Expanse 30 8720 1,085.85
Finance cosls 31 TG 5136
Depreciation snd amoriisation expanse 32 £82.83 729.18
Cther expenses 33 231891 241687
Total expenses i5,775.94 14,732.47
L Profit befors exceptionsd Bemes and tax 120535 1,925.08
Exceptional Hems 34 . {(680.36)
0 Profi {Loss) before tax from conlinuing operations 4,205,358 1.244.72
Income X expanse 35
Currant tax 14357
Deferred tax charge/ {credith 280.66
Profitl {Loss) for the year TIR78 320,49
£ Chher pomprebensive ingome
Heme that will not be reciassified 1o profit or loss
Remeasurement of post employment benefit obligations {0.88
Fair vahse gain on equity insfruments 22570
income tax sdjustment relating o these ftems {74.35)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 15047
Total compretiensive Income/ {Loss} for the vear Thes 870.96
Earnings per ghars 38
Basic earnings per share 204
Diluted samings per share 104 204

The sccompaying sotes form an integred part of the fnancial statements )
As per our roport of oven date sttached
Far nnd on behalf of the board For CNGSN & Assaclates LLP
Chartered Acosuntonts
{Firn Registration No 0451 557 82000363

T, Kannan BM. Senusandarun Chinnssmy Ganessn

Chairman & Mapaging Director Pirector Partner
NMembershiy No 827301

B Krishnsn &, Parsviasivan

Chief Floaneind Officey Ceonnpany Secroary

Place © Kappalyr, Modurai
Diate ; April 27, 2018
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VTHM Limited

Siatement of Changes in Equity for the vear ended BMarch 31, 2048
(A amounts are i lakhs of indlan Rupess, unless otherwise stated)
{4} Equity Share Capital

Balance at the beginning of Aprd 1, 2016 402,28
Changes n equlty share capifal dunng the year -
tance a the end of March 31, 2017 402,28

Changes in squily share capital during the vesr -

Balance at the end of March 31, 2018 4062728
{8} Uther Equity

Othet)
Furticulars Geonaral Reservel  comprshensive Relalned Barnings Totat
inoome

Batance as at Apl 3, 2018 1182586 1,134.72 3,747 42 18,807 80
Additions/ (deductions} duting the year - .88 .88} -
Totat Comprebensive Inpoma for the year - 15047 82645 IRER
Balance as at Barch 31,2017 11,64588 128807 4567.03 174788
Transfer o Genersl Resarve 4 50000 - {4500 .00 -
Additions/ (deductions) during tha vaar - 0.8 {1088} -
[hvidend paid E {383.14) {383.14}
incorme tax refund for earlier vears . 5816 581G
Changes in deferrad iax recognised direclly in equily - - 256,81 256,41
Totat Comprehensive noome for the vear - {15,843 778.70 76288
Ralancs g8 st Bargh 312018 w8,925.88 4281 27 Vi iR 194 45

The accompanying notes orm an integral part of the financial siatements
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Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31 ,2018

1.

Corporate Information

VTM Limited was established in 1946 with the founding principles of setting standards
in weaving by ensuring that the best of weaving technology was always available. Today,
the Company is well-established with unique capabilities that allows to cater to exotic
constructions in weaving. It has also expanded the capabilities to include special weaves
and combinations. 270 state-of-the-art looms take pride of place in the manufacturing
unit. 132 Sulzer machines, 135 Air jets and 3 Jacquard machines work in tandem to
produce 1 million meters of fabric every month. It is also equipped with adequate
equipment to cater to special fabric manufacturing in fine counts and complex
specifications.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards(Ind AS) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') (to the extent notified) and guidelines issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI). The Ind AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Actread with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accountin g Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Basis of preparation and presentation

For all periods up to and including the year ended March 31, 2017, the Company
prepared its financial statements in accordance with accounting standards notified under
section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with paragraph 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 (Indian GAAP).

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018 are the first financial
statements the Company has prepared in accordance with Ind AS with the date of
transition as April 1, 2016. Refer to note 49 for information on how the Company
adopted Ind AS.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles (GAAP) requires management to make Jjudgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, Habilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of contingent liabilities on the
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date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision
to accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in current and future periods.

Functional and presentation currency

"These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Company's functional currency. All financial information presented in INR has been
rounded to the nearest Lakhs (up to two decimals).

The financial statements are approved for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on
April27,2018."

2A  Critical accounting estimates and management judgments
In application of the accounting policies, which are described in note 2, the management
of the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources.

The estimates and assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant.

Information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical judgements
used in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Property, Plantand Equipment (PPE)

The residual values and estimated useful life of PPEs, Intangible Assets and Investment
Properties are assessed by the technical team at each reporting date by taking into
account the nature of asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating condition of
the asset, past history of replacement and maintenance support. Upon review, the
management accepts the assigned useful life and residual value for computation of
depreciation/amortisation. Also, management judgement is exercised for classifying the
asset as investment properties or vice versa.

Currenttax

Calculations of income taxes for the current period are done based on applicable tax laws
and management's judgement by evaluating positions taken in tax returns and
interpretations of relevant provisions of law.

Deferred Tax Assets

Significant management judgement is exercised by reviewing the deferred tax assets at
each reporting date to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be retained/
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recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies.

Fairvalue

Management uses valuation techniques in measuring the fair value of financial instruments
where active market quotes are not available. In applying the valuation techniques,
management makes maximum use of market inputs and uses estimates and assumptions that
are, as far as possible, consistent with observable data that market participants would use in
pricing the instrument. Where applicable data is not observable, management uses its best
estimate about the assumptions that market participants would make. These estimates may
vary from the actual prices that would be achieved in an arm's length transaction at the
reporting date,

Impairment of Trade Receivables

The impairment assessment for trade receivables are done based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The assumptions, selection of mputs for calculation of
impairment are based on management judgement considering the past history, market
conditions and forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting date.

Impairment of Non-financial assets (PPE)

The impairment assessment of non-financial assets is determined based on estimation of
recoverable amount of such assets. The assumptions used in computing the recoverable
amount are based on management judgement considering the timing of future cash flows,
discount rates and the risks specific to the asset.

Defined Benefit Plans and Other long term employee benefits

"The cost of the defined benefit plan and other long term employee benefits, and the present
value of such obligation are determined by the independent actuarial valuer. An actuarial
valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in
future. Management believes that the assumptions used by the actuary in determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases, mortality rates and attrition rates are reasonable. Due to
the complexities involved in the valuation and its long term nature, this obligationis highly
sensitive tochanges inthese assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting
date.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities could not be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, management uses valuation techniques including the
Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, to determine its fair value The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
Judgement is exercised in establishing fair values. J udgements include considerations of inputs
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such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.
Provisions and contingencies

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment
of the probability of an outflow of resources, and on past experience and circumstances known
at the reporting date. The actual outflow of resources at a future date may therefore vary from
the figure estimated at end of each reporting period.

2B Recentaccounting pronouncements
Standards issued but not yet effective
"The following standards have been notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs

a.  IndAS 115—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective from April
1,2018)

b.  IndAS 116 Leases (effective from April 1, 2019)

The Company is evaluating the requirements of the above standards and the effect on the
financial statements is also being evaluated.”

3.  Significant Accounting Policies
a)  Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/
non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

i) Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal
operating cycle

i)  Held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii) Expectedto berealised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to
settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.
Aliability is current when:
1) Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
ii)  Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
iii)  Itisduetobe settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv)  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at
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least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified 3 months as its operating
cycle.

b)  Fairvalue measurement

The Company has applied the fair value measurement wherever necessitated at
each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

i) Inthe principal market for the asset or liability;

ii)  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for
the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market
participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and the best
use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and
for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

"Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or
liabilities. "

"Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
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fair value measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and "

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and labilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to
the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company has designated the respective team leads to determine the policies and
procedures for both recurring and non - recurring fair value measurement. External valuers are
involved, wherever necessary with the approval of Company's board of directors. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional
standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosure, the Company has determined classes of assets
and liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risk of the asset or liability and the
level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. The component wise fair value
measurement is disclosed in the relevant notes.

c) Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods

"Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue on sale of goods is recognised when the risk and rewards of
ownership is transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with the despatch of the goods
or as per the inco-terms agreed with the customers.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment. It comprises of invoice value of goods
including excise duty and after deducting discounts, volume rebates and applicable taxes on
sale. It also excludes value of self-consumption,

Power Generation

Power generated from windmills that are covered under wheeling and banking
arrangement with the State Electricity Board/ Electricity Distribution Companies are
consumed at factories. The monetary values of such power generated that are captively
consumed are not recognised as revenue.
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Export entitlements

Export entitlements from Government authorities are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss when the right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme is established in
respect of the exports made by the Company, and where there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

Sale of scrap

Scrap sale is recognised at the fair value of consideration received or receivable upon
transfer of significant risk and rewards. It comprises of invoice value of goods including excise
duty excluding applicable taxes on sale.

Interest Income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of
the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective
interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses.

Rental Income

Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of
the relevant lease, if the escalation is not a compensation for increase in cost inflation index.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the company's right to receive dividend is
established by the reporting date, which is generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

d)  Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress Deemed cost
option for firsttime adopter of Ind AS

Under the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP), the property, plant and equipment were carried in
the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation. The company has elected to fair value
its land as the deemed cost as at the date of transition, viz., 1 April 2016 and applied Ind AS 16
retrospectively for all other classes of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Presentation

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the
cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs of a qualifying asset, if
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the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific
useful lives. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
"Advances paid towards the acquisition of tangible assets outstanding at each balance sheet
date, are disclosed as capital advances under long term loans and advances and the cost of the
tangible assets not ready for their intended use before such date, are disclosed as capital work in
progress. "

Component Cost

All material/ significant components have been identified for our plant and have been
accounted separately. The useful life of such component are analysed independently and
wherever components are having different useful life other than plant they are part of, useful
life of components are considered for calculation of depreciation.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within
the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of repairs and
maintenance are recognised in the statement of profit and loss as incurred.Machinery spares/
insurance spares that can be issued only in connection with an item of fixed assets and their
issue is expected to be irregular are capitalised. Replacement of such spares is charged to
revenue. Other spares are charged as revenue expenditure as and when consumed.

Derecognition

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are
measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assetis derecognized.

e)  Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful
life on a straight line method. The depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less 5% being its residual value.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and
equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

f) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Costincludes costof
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and
condition. Costs are determined on weighted average method as follows:

(i) Raw materials, packing materials and consumables: At purchase cost including
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other cost incurred in bringing materials/consumables to their present location
and condition.

(i) Work-in-process and intermediates: At material cost, conversion costs and
appropriate share of production overheads “

(iii)  Finished goods: At material cost, conversion costs and an appropriate share of
production overheads. Excise Duty is exempted on finished grey goods.

g)  Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when an entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value. However, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset are also added to the cost of the financial asset. Purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade
date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified on the basis of their
contractual cash flow characteristics and the entity's business model of managing them.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
® Debt instruments at amortised cost
e  Debtinstruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

e  Debtinstruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profitor
loss (FVTPL)

® Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCT)

Debtinstruments at amortised cost

The Company classifies a debt instrument as at amortised cost, if both the following conditions
are met:

a)  The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for

]
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b)  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
Solely Payments of Principal and Interest (SPP1) onthe principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognised in the profitor loss.

Debtinstrument at FVTOCI
The Company classifies a debt instrument at FVTOCI, ifboth of the following criteria are met:

a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual
cash flows and selling the financial assets, and

b)  Theasset's contractual cash flows represent SPPL

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured as at each
reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive
income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes finance income, impairment losses and
reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss statement. On derecognition of
the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OClis reclassified from the equity to
profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest
income using the EIR method.

Debtinstrument at FVTPL

The Company classifies all debt instruments, which do not meet the criteria for
categorization as atamortized cost oras FVTOCI, as at FVTPL.

Debt instruments included within the FV TPL category are measured at fair value withall
changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity
instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. Where the Company makes
an irrevocable election of classifying the equity instruments at FVTOCI, it recognises all
subsequent changes in the fair value in OCI, without any recycling of the amounts from OCl to

profitand loss, even onsale of such investments.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with
all changes recognized in the profit and loss.

Financial assets are measured at FVTPL except for those financial assets whose
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contractual terms give rise to cash flows on specified dates that represents SPPI, are measured
as detailed below depending on the business model:

Classification Name of the financial asset

Amortised cost Trade receivables, Loans given to employees and others, deposits, inferest receivable,
unbilled revenue and other advances recoverable in cash.

FVTOC Equity investments in companies ofher than subsidiaries and associates if an option
exercised at the time of initial recognifion.

FVTPL Other investments in equity instruments, mutual funds, forward exchange contracts {to the
extent not designated as a hedging instrument),

Derecognition
A financial asset is primarily derecognised when:
® Therights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

e The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset
or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delaytoa
third party under a 'pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset,

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of
the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement. In that
case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model
for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and
credit risk exposure:

a)  Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.,
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loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.
b)  Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured at FVTOCI

c)  Tradereceivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset
that result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18.

The Company follows 'simplified approach' for recognition of impairment loss
allowance on:

® Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables; and
# All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of

Ind AS17.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the
Company determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk
since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 months ECL is
used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves
such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month
ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12 months ECL is a portion of
the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECLis the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to
receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the
cash flows, the Company considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument
(including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the expected life of the
financial instrument and Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms,

ECL allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized asincome/
expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head 'other
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expenses’ in the profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation of ECL for various
financial instruments is described below:

Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, which reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at
air value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL
amount is presented as 'accumulated impairment amount' in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the company combines
financial instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective
of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to
be identified on a timely basis.

For impairment purposes, significant financial assets are tested on individual basis at
each reporting date. Other financial assets are assessed collectively in groups that share
similar credit risk characteristics. Accordingly, the impairment testing is done on the
following basis:

Name of the financial asset impairment Testing Methodology |
Trade Recelvables Expected Credit Loss modsl (ECL) is applied. The ECL over lifetime of the assels arel
estimated by using a provision matrix which is based on historical loss rates reflecting
current conditions and forecasts of futurs economic conditions which are grouped on the basis
of similar credit characteristics such as nature of industry, customer segment, past due
status and other factors that are relevant to esfimate the expscted cash loss from these
assets,

Other financial assals When the credit risk has not increased significantly, 12 month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss, When there is significant change in credit risk since initial recogrition, t?ae}

impairment is measured based on probability of default over the ife time. i In a subsequent
period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that thers is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity revers fo recognising
impairment loss allowance based on 12 month EGL.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at FVTPL
and as at amortised cost.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is
included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.
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All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and
borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative
financial instruments,

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described
below:

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading, if they are incurred for the purpose
of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments
in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are
also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in
own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to profit and loss. However, the company may transfer the cumulative gain orloss within
equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss. The company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value
through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR
amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments

The Company holds derivative financial instruments such as foreign exchange forward
and options contracts to mitigate the risk of changes in exchange rates on foreign
currency exposures. The counterparty for these contracts is generally a bank.

Derivatives fair valued through profit or loss

This category has derivative financial assets or liabilities which are not designated as
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hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an
cconomic perspective, they may not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109,
Financial Instruments. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is so
designated but is ineffective as per Ind AS 109, is categorized as a financial asset or
financial liability, at fair value through profit or loss.

Derivatives not designated as hedges are recognized initially at fair value and
attributable transaction costs are recognized in net profit in the Statement of Profit and
Loss when incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, these derivatives are measured at
fair value through profit or loss and the resulting exchange gains or losses are included in
other income. Assets / liabilities in this category are presented as current assets / current
liabilities if they are either held for trading or are expected to be realized within 12
months after the Balance Sheet date.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged
or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabi lity. The difference in the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profitor loss.

Reclassification of financial assets
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The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition.
After initial recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are equity
instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those
assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company's senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are significant to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to
external parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either begins or
ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company reclassifies
financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date
which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business
model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including
impairment gains or losses) or interest.

The following table shows various reclassification and how they are accounted for:

$.No |Original Revised Accounting treatment
classification classification

1 |Amortised cost FVTPL Fair value is measured al reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortized cost and fair value is recognised in the profit or loss

2 JFVTPL Amortised Cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new gross carrying
amount. EIR is calculated based on the new gross carrying amount.

3 lAmortised cost EVTOC! Fair value is measured at reclassification date. Difference between
previous amortised cost and fair value is recognised in OCL. No change
in EIR due fo reclassification.

4 IEVTOO Amortised cost Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new amortised cost
carrying amount. However, cumulative gain or loss in OCI is adjusted
against fair value. Conseguently, the asset is measured as if i had
always been measured at amortised cost.

5 IpyTpL EYTOC Fair value at reclassification date becomes its new carrying amount. No
other adjustment is required.

8 FVTOC FVTPL Assets continug 1o be measured at fair value. Cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in OCI is reclassified to PAL at the reclassification
date, ‘

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet, if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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h}  Foreigncurrency transactions and translations
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional
currency spotrates at the date at which the transaction first qualifies for recognition. However,
for practical reasons, the Company uses an average rate, if the average approximates the actual
rate at the date of the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising
onsettlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss,
respectively).

The Company enters into forward exchange contract to hedge its risk associated with
Foreign currency fluctuations. The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward
exchange contract is amortized as expense or income over the life of the contract. In case of
monetary items which are covered by forward exchange contract, the difference between the
yearend rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange difference. Any
profit or loss arising on cancellation of a forward exchange contract is recognized as income or
expense for that year.

1) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost include interest computed using Effective Interest Rate
method, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising from
foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the interest
cost.
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"Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction,
production of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset which takes
substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use. The Company determines the
amount of borrowing cost eligible for capitalisation by applying capitalisation rate to the
expenditure incurred on such cost. The capitalisation rate is determined based on the weighted
average rate of borrowing cost applicable to the borrowings of the Company which are
outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made specifically towards purchase of
the qualifying asset. The amount of borrowing cost that the Company capitalises during the
period does not exceed the amount of borrowing cost incurred during that period. All other
borrowings costs are expensed in the period in which they occur

"Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

1) Government Grants

Government grants are recognised at fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached conditions are complied
with.

In case of revenue related grant, the income is recognised on a systematic basis over the
period for which it is intended to compensate an expense and is disclosed under “Other
operating revenue” or netted off against corresponding expenses wherever appropriate.
Receivables of such grants are shown under “Other Financial Assets”. Export benefits are
accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no uncertainty in
receiving the same. Receivables of such benefits are shown under “Other Financial Assets™.

Government grants related to assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, shall
be presented in the balance sheet by setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant setup as
deferred income is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

k)  Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be

recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute

the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in the
countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.
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Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at
the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. Where there is deferred tax assets arising from
carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax created, they are recognised to the extent of
deferred tax liability.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable
that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
in the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right
exists to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

D Retirement and other employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for short-term employee benefit in the period the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchan ge
forthatservice,

Defined contribution plans
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Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has no obligation, other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The
Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund scheme as an expense, when
an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable
to the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the
contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance
sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, areduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Defined benefit plans

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires
contributions to be made to a separately administered fund. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on
plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are
recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCT in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Compensated absences

As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitled to be carried
forward to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the end of the reporting period.
Accordingly, no liability towards compensated absences are recognised in these financial
statements.

Other long term employee benefits

Liabilities recognised in respect of other long-term employee benefits are measured at
the present value of the estimated future cash outflows expected to be made by the Company in
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date.

m} Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the
substance of the arrangement at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a
lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement.

For arrangements entered into prior to April 1, 2016, the Company has determined
whether the arrangement contain lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the
date of transition.
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A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the
Company is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are operating leases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair
value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease liability so
as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
charges are recognised in finance costs in the statement of profit and loss, unless they are
directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalized in accordance with
the Company's general policy on the borrowing costs. Contingent rentals are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no
reasonable certainty that the Company will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term,

n)  Impairment of non financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset
may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is
required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

0)  Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent asset
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Provisions are discounted, if the effect of the time value of money is material,
using pre-tax rates that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, an
increase in the provisions due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost. These
provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates. Necessary provision for doubtful debts, claims, etc., are made, if realisation of
money is doubtful in the judgement of the management.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose
existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
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future events beyond the control of the company or a present obligation that is not recognized
because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A
contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be
recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities are disclosed
separately.

Show cause notices issued by various Government authorities are considered for
evaluation of contingent liabilities only when converted into demand.

Contingent assets

Where an inflow of economic benefits is probable, the Company discloses a brief
description of the nature of the contingent assets at the end of the reporting period, and, where
practicable, an estimate of their financial effect. Contingent assets are disclosed but not
recognised in the financial statements.

p)  Cashandcashequivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances with original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into cash, which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

q)  CashFlow Statement

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments.

Cash flows are presented using indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past
or future cash receipts or payments.

Bank borrowings are generally considered to be financing activities. However, where
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand form an integral part of an entity's cash
management, bank overdrafts are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents forthe
purpose of Cash flow statement.

r)  Earningspershare

The basic earnings per share are computed by dividing the net profit for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period.

Diluted EPS is computed by dividing the net profit after tax by the weighted
average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic EPS and also weighted average
number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential
equity shares. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning of the
period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined
independently for each period presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive
equity shares are adjusted for bonus shares, as appropriate.
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VTM Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

hs al As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2016

5  Capital Work-in-progress
Capital work In progress

6  Non-current investments

1 in other P at FYTOCH

Quoted

Multi Commaodity Exchange of india Lid [69 (previous year 69} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully 048 0.83 087
paid}

Ungquoted *

Thiagarajar Mills Private Limitad [70,140 {previous year : 70,140} equity shares of Rs.10 each 1,592.66 1,582.87 137268
fully paid]

Colour Yarms Limited [108,000 (previous year 106,000) equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid} 15,90 15.90 15.90
integrated Hi-Tech Limited {1,800 (previous year 1,800} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid) 0.08 008 .08
Telesys Software Limited 119,000 {previous year 19,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid] 063 0.63 0.63
SIMA Textile Processing Centre Lid 19,840 (19,840} equity shares of Rs.10 each fully paid} 32475 32425 32425
OPG Power Generation Limited (32, 300 {previous year 22,700} equity shaves of Rs.10 sach 373 262 323
fully paid]

Goyal MG cases Pyt Lid [Nl {previous yaar 69,700 ) equily shares of Rs.10 sach fully paid] . 13.94 «
Saheli Exporis Private Limited [Nl (previous year Nif} equity shares of Rs.10 sach fully paid] . - 287

1HIT T 1,950.82 1,720.41

“ Fair values have been determined o the exient information available with the Company in
raspect of the investments in unfisted companies. In the opinion of the managemen!, the impact
of fair vaiue changes , fany, s ol considered to be material

Total non-current investments

Aggregate amount of quoted vastmants 0.83 457
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 0.83 057
Aguregate cost of unguoted iwestmenis

2233 2281
Aggregate amount of impedrment by value of investments - - B
7 Hon-current Loans {al amortised cost)

{Uinsscured, considered good)

Loans and advances - other than related parties BAT 3823
847 fo e
&  Other non-current financial assels
{Unsecured. considered good)
Fixed deposit with banks expected fo mature after 12 months from the 161
reporiing date {sarmarked in favour of ACCT) ’
Securily deposits ) 10241 7082
80.11 104.07 70.92
9 Other non-current assels
{Unsecured, considered good)
Advance income tax {net of provision for tax) 8124 2725 -
£1.24 27.25 -
10 Inventories
Raw Materials - Yam 77424 87500
Workdn-progress
Yarn 4T3 33161
Cloth 85.16 N
Finished Products
Ciothy 755 937.03
Waste .73 A0
Stores and spares 13795 12808
Loose tools 401 a.01
213232 234484
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VTM Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
11 Investments
investment in Mutual Funds
Quoted:
OHFL Pramerica Mutual Fund 603.28 " -
Frankiin thdia Low Duration Fund - 526,35 -
Frankiin India Ultra Short Bond Fund - 4.278.32 -
TTTTTTEuAEs 4307187 .
12 Trade recelvables
{(Unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six manths from the date they are due for payment 47 A0 4341 40.05
Other debts 200421 2,308 88
; 204462 234893
Allowance for expected credit loss - - -
2,044,839 2,348.93
13 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 1.76 1,84 1.58
Balances with Banks
- in Current Account 76.93 400581
837 400748
14 Other bank batances
in Fixed Deposits (dus to mature within 12 months from end of the reporting period) 3.500.00 - -
In Ear-marked acoounis
- Unpald Dividend Account 712 73.42 84.73
o BETIAT 7342 w73
15 Current financlsl assels - Loans
Balances with government sulnrilies: 45245 33181
Loans and advances - ofher than related parties 83.83 132.01
536,08 463.92
16 Other current assets
Interest receivable on fixed deposits 138 - -
Advance fo suppliers 4598 oo 0.35
Prepaid expenses 17.32 - N
TTTTeE 061 .35
17 Capital
Authorised Share Capital
10,00,00.000 Equity shares of Re. 1 each 1,000.00 1,000.00
1,000.00 1,800.00
issued Share Capital
4,02,27,800 Equity shares of Re. 1 each 40228 40228 402.28
o AmE 0228 402.28
Subscribed and fully paid up share capital
4,02,27 8600 Equity shares of Re. § sach 402.28 402.28
402,28 40228
Notes:
1) Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed
Balance as at the beginning of the year 4,02,27,600 4,02,27 600
Add: Issued during the year . -
Balance at the end of the year 4,02,27,800 402,27 800

2} The Company has no Holding or Subsidlary Companies.

3} During the last five years immedistely praceding the date of Balance Sheet, the Company has naither issued any shares as bonus shares nor for consideration other than cash and has
not bought back any shares,

4} The Company had split its Rs. 10/~ paid up shares Into Re. 1/ paid up shares in Octobar 2012,
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VTM Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

§)  Rights, preferences and restrictions in respect of equity shares issued by the Company

&  The company has issued only one class of equity shares having a par value of Re. 1 each, The equity shares of the company having par value of Re.1/- rank par-passy in all respects
including voting rights and entitlement to dividend,

b.  The Company declares dividend on equity shares. In the event of declaration of interim dividend, the same is as per the decision of the Board of Directors. Final Dividend is proposed
by Board of Directors and approved by the shareholders of the Company at the Annual General Mesting. During the year, the Company proposed a dividend of NI 0,75 per equity
share held (Previous year INR (.75 per equity share heid)

¢ Inthe event of liquidetion, shareholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the company after distribution of al preferential amounts. The distribution will be proportionate
1o the number of equity shares held by the shareholder.

8) Shareholders holding mors than 5% of the total ghare capital
March 31, 2018 Harch 31, 2017 April 4, 2016 i
Name of the share holder Mo, of shares % of No. of shares| % off No. of shares held % of holding
held holding] held hciding;
TKannan, Pariner, Guruvayoorappan Investments 1864 75,20,000 18.69 75,20,000} 1869
T Kannan, Pariner, Avittam Investments 1884 75,00,000 18.64 75,00,000] 18.84)
T Kannan, Partner, Karumuttu Investments §1,80,000 15,39 61,980,000 15.39] 61,90,000 15.39
/s, Thiagarajar Mills Private Limited 76.78.000 86 26,78,000 6.66 26,78,000] 6.66
As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2016
18 Other Equity
General Reserve 16,125.66 11,625.66 11,625.66
QOther Comprehensive Income 1,281.22 1,286.07 1,134.72
Profit and Loss Account 78T 61 456703 3,747.42
TTTTTiB 944D 17.478.76 16,507.80
a) General reserve
Balance at the beginning of the year 11,625.68 11,625.68 11,125.66
Additions during the year 450000 - 5060.00
Deductions/Adjustments during the year - ~ -
Balance at the end of the year 11,625.66 11,625,668
b} Other comprehensive income
Ralance at the beginning of the year 1,134.72 1.134.72
Additions during the year 150.47 -
Deductions! Adjustments during the year 3.88 -
Ralance at the end of the year 4,286.07 1,134.72
¢) Profit and loss account
Balance at the beginning of the year 3,747.42 4,247 42
Net profit for the period 82048 -
Dividend paid - -
tncome tax refund received for earlier years - -
Changes in deferred tax recognised directly in equity
Transfer from Other Comprehensive Income {0.88) -
Transfer to General Reserve - {500.00)
Balance at the end of the year 4,567 03 3,747.42
19 Non-Current Liabilities - Financial Liabilities: Borrowings
Secured
From Banks ** 898.24 254.00
698.24 254,00

* Terms of loan and security details
1y Torm loan under TUF Scheme availed from State Bank of india by securing first charge on the specific assets procured under TUF Scheme - repayable in 5 years on half yearly

basls, commencing from Cctober 2014,

2} Term loan under ATUF Scheme availed from Exim Bank of India by securing first charge on the specific assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in § years on half yearly
basis, o sing from Decer her 2016,

33 Tarm loan under ATUF Scheme avalled from Exim Bank of India by securing first charge on the specific assets procured under ATUF Scheme - repayable in 5 years on hall ysarly
basis, o ing from Septermber 2018.

106




Nomooaosonns

VTM Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2

&

4

P

Other non-current financial liabilities
Deferred Government Grant - TUF Subsidy
Lease rent advance

Lease prepayment liability

Deferred Tax Liability

On Fixed Assets
Remeasurement of financial assets

Deferred Tax Asset
Gratuity and fsave sncashment
Others

Net deferred tax iability
MAT credit sntitiernent

Trade payables
Trade payables **

** Dues {o Micro and Small Enferprises have been delermined to the extent such paries have
been identified on the basis of information collected by the management represants the principal
amount payable fo these enterprises, There are no interest due and outstanding as at the
reporting date. Please refer note 42.

Other current financial liabillties

Security Deposits

Other current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt
Unpsid Dividend

Statutory Duss Payable

Employee payabies
Remuneralion payable to Chairman and MD

Provisions
Provision for tax {net of advance tax)
Provision for Gratulty and Compensated absence

As at
March 31, 2018

As at As at
March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
- 43,83

2.19 1.99
96.03 98.01
98.22 143.83
651.08 41216
636.70 52785
1,287.75 939.81
BO7 3999
B.07 39.99
1,252.68 839.82
1,252.68 889.82
442 56 21218
442 56 21249
203 242
2.03 242
348.08 17200
7175 94.66
472 4458
2260 44.24
55.00 80.00
50213 375.35

- 19.38
115.54 101.33
145.54 120.71
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VTM Limited

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2018
(All amounts are in lakhs of Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended For the year ended
fdarch 31, 2048 #March 31, 2017
26 Revenue from operations
Sale of Products
Cioth 15,985.16 14,865.73
Yarn and cloth waste 349.13 3075
16,334.29 14,896.48
Other Operating Revenue
Foreign exchange gain {net) 46,12 2.26
Duty drawback 82.41 144.07
16,462,682 15,042.81
27  Other income
interest Income 4287 13.43
Dividend Income
From Long Term Investments 37.80 -
From Current Investments 0.01 793.41
Income on fair valuation of investment in mutual funds 1.59 1.87
Deferred income on Government Grants - 43.83
Profit on sale of fixed assets 48.57 548,73
Profit on sale of investments 344 .96 184.43
(ther non operating income 43.62 28.24
519.52 1,614.74
28 Cost of materials consumed - Yam
Opening stock 774.24 875.00
Add : Purchases 14,733.89 10,274,158
Less : Closing Stock 72180 774.24
11,786.63 10,374,91
29 Changes in inventories of work-in-progress, stock in trade and finished goods
Opening Balance
Work-in-progress
Yarn 408.70 331.61
Cloth in Process 85.16 7171
Finished goods
Cloth 725,53 937.03
Waste 0.73 400
1,220.12 1,344,358
Closing Balance
Work-in-progress
Yarn 310.81 408.70
Cloth in Process 8562 85.16
Finished goods
Cloth 02 72553
Waste 2 0.73
146770 1,220.12
(increase) Decrease in inventories 747583 124.23
30 Employee benefils expense
Salaries and wages 778.48
Centribution fo provident and other funds 7713
Staff workmen welfare expenses 179.34
1,157.20 1,035.95
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For the year ended For the year ended

Warch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
31 Finance Cost
Interest on Term Loans 7565 §1.36
Other borrowing cost 2.25 -
77.90 51.36
32 Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 582,93 729.15
682.93 72815
33 Other expenses
Power and fusl 726.28 73273
Consumption of stores and spare parts 64493 847.44
Bleaching and Processing charges - Cloth 129.82 56,39
Rent 7.88 11.23
Repairs to buildings 67,68 7368
Repairs to machinery 12422 150.26
Insurance 16.03 14.08
Rates and faxes 632 19.67
Payment o Auditors - -
- as Auditors 500 0.25
- for Certification & Other Services * 356 0.05
- for Reimbursement of expensas * 034 0.10
Seliing expenses 17141 124.98
Brokerage expenses 20362 165.58
Loss on sale of fixed assels 013 0.85
Donations 2500 2500
Corporate social responsibility expenditure 28.52 26.58
Legal and Professional charges 1319 1113
Directors sittings fees and traveliing expenses 141 1.61
Commission to Chairman and Managing Director 55.00 55.00
Miscellaneous expenses 80,18 91.33
231894 2,416.87
* represents fees paid fo erstwhile auditors
34 Exceptiona! ifems
Loss on sale of investments - 680.36
- 680.36
35, Income fax expense
Current tax
Current tax on profits for the year 432.00 115.00
Adjustments for current tax of prior periods = 2857
432.00 143.57
Total Current tax expenss
Deferred Tax {5.35) 280.66
Deferred tax adjustments (5.35) 28066
Total deferred tax expense (benefit) ’
Income tax expense 426.65 42423
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b) The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profif as follows:

For the year ended
WMarch 31, 2018

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Profit before tax from continuing operations 1.205.35 124472
Income tax expense calculated at 34.608% (2017-18: 34.608%) 41718 430.77
Profit on sale of fixed assets/ investments - considered separately for tax purposes - {254.08)
Additional tax paid as per assessments - {28.5T)
Effect of expenses/ (income) that are not treated differenty for tax purposes 14.85 {4.55)
income tax expense 432.00 143,57
¢} Income fax recognised in other comprahensive income
Deferred tax
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation and equily instruments 249 (74.35)
Total income tax recognised in other comprehensive income 249 74.35)
d) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2018
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assets in Opening balance  Recognised in profit Recognised in Other Closing balance
relation to: or loss comprehensive
incomel Equity
Property, plant, and equipment and Intangible Assets (651.05) 29110 - (359.95)
Expenses allowable on payment basis under the Income
Tax Act 35.07 513 0.07 40.27
Remeasurement of financial instruments {638.85) (290.88) 259.33 (670.40)
QOther temporary differences 215 215
(1,252.68) 538 259.40 (987.93)
MAT Credit enfitlement - - -
Total {1,252.68) 535 259.40 (987.93)
&) Movement of deferred tax expense during the year ended March 31, 2017
Deferred tax (liabilities)/assels in Opening balance  Recognised in profit Recognised in Other Closing balance
relation to: or loss comprehensive
income/ Equity
Property, plant, and equipment and intangible Assets {412.16) (238.89) {651.05)
Expenses allowable on payment basis under the income
Tax Act 39.99 (5.20% 0.28 35.07
Remeasurement of financial instruments (527.65) {36.57) (74.63) {638.85)
Other temporary differences - - - 2.18
(899.82) {280.86) (74.35) (1,252.68)
MAT Credit entitlernent - - - -
Total {899.82) {280.66) (74.35) (1,262 68)
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36 Earnings per share

For the year ended
March 31, 218

For the year ended
March 31, 2017

Profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company IR0 820.48
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 4,02,27 600 4,02,27,600
Basic earnings per share (Rs) 1.94 204
Dituted eamings per share (Rs) 1.84 2.04
37  Earnings in foreign currency
FOB value of exports 3,780.18 3,370.72
38 Expenditure in foreign currency: (net of withholding tax)
Commission 64.86 40.48
Travelling expenses 1.83 -
66,49 40.48
39 Value of Imports calculated on C.1F basis
Components and spare parts 77.22 185,02
Capital goods £94.82 1,483.11
77204 1,658.13

40 Value of imported and indigenous Raw Materials and Stores and Spares consumed during the financial year and the

percentage of each to the total consumption

Particulars Year ended March 31, 2018 Year ended March 31, 2017
) Rs.in Lakhs Percantage (% Rs.in Lakhs Percentage (%)
Value of raw materials consumed
Imported - . - -
Indigenous 11,786 63 00.00 10,374.91 100.00
11,788,683 80 10,374.91 10000
Vatie of Stores and Spares Consumed
imported 102.33 t 24554 2897
indigenous 542 80 84.13 601.90 7103
84403 aee 847 .44 100.00
41 Commitments and contingent lability
Yeur gnded Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Contingent Liabiiities **
Letters of Credit - .
Tax demands & PF Arrears under dispute 5866 120.05
Biils discounted 403,890 319.03
Commitments N

** The management befieves, based on intermal assessment and / or iegal advice, that the probability of an ultimate adverse decision and outflow of resources
of the company is not probable and accordingly, no provision for the same is considered necessary.

42 Disclosures required by the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act,

20086 are as under

(a) The principal amount remaining unpaid at the end of the year
(b) The delayed payments of principal amount paid beyond the appointed date during the year
(c} Interest actually paid under Section 16 of MSMED Act

{d) Normal Interest due and payable during the year, for defayed payments, as per the agreed terms

(e} Total interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid

“This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of

information available with the Company.
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43 Operating Segments

The company is engaged in the business of "Textiles" and therefore, has only one reportable segment in accordance with Ind AS 108 'Operating Segments’.

Information relating to geographical areas

{a) Revenue from exiernal customers

) Year ended Year ended]
Particulars March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
india 12,509.78 11.502.96
Rest of the world 3,824.51 3,393.53

Total 16,334.29 14,806 .48
{b) Non current assets
The manufcaturing facilifies of the Company are situated in India and no non-current assets are held outside India.
{c) Information about major customers

) Year gnded Year ended
Particulars #arch 34, 2018 March 31, 2017
Number of external customers each contributing more than 10% of total revenue 4 3
Total revenue from the above customers 2,543.82 1,716.83

44  Operating lease arrangements

- Year sndedd Year ended

Particulars Harch 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
As Lessor

The Company has entered info operating lease arrangements for certain surplus faciities. The leases
are canceliable at the option of sither party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual agreement

of the parties.
Total lease income recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 850 282
As Lessee
The Company has enterad info operating lease arrangements for certain facilities. The leases are
canceliable at the option of either party to lease and may be renewed based on mutual agreement of
the parties.
Lease payments recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 7.8¢ 11.23
45 Government Grants
The details of Government Grants received by the Company are as follows ©
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Subsidies for project 4383
Duty Drawack on exports 8241 144 07
Interest subvention on export finance 9.50 10,47

There are no unfulfiled conditions and other contingencies attached io government assistance that has been recognised in the fnancial statements.
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48 Financial Instruments
Capital management
The Company manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Company will be able to cantinue as going concern, while maximising the refurn to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance.

The Company determines the amount of capital required on the basis of annual operaling plans and long-term product and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements are
met through equity, long term and short-term borrowings.

For the purposes of the Company's capital management, capitaf includes issued capital, share premium and aff other equity reserves atirbutable to the equity holders.

Categories of Financial Instruments March 31, 2018 March 31, 2047 April 1, 2016
Financial assets
a. Measured at amortised cost
Loans {non-current) .01 847 38.23
Other non-current financial assets 8.1 104.02 7092
Trade receivables 31 2,044.82 234893
Cash and cash equivalents 7877 400719
Bank balances other than above 7342 9473
Loans {current) 53608 463.92
b. Measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCH)
investments {non-current} 193771 1,950.92 172041
¢. Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss (FYTRL)
Investments (current) B03.26 4.801.67 -
Derivative instruments - - -
Financial liabilities
a. Measured at amortised cost
Borrowings {non-currant) 898,24 25480
Other non-current financial liabilities 88.22 14383
Trade payables 442 56 21248
Other financial liabifities 203 2132

b. Mandatorily measured at fair valus through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Derivative instruments . . .

Financial risk management abjectives

The reasury function provides services 1o the business, co-ordinates access fo domestic and infemational fnancial markels, monitors and manages the financial risks relafing fo the
operations fhrough internal risk reports which analyse exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These risks includa market risk {including currency risk, interast rate risk and other
price risk}, credit dsk and Hguidity risk.

The Company seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using natural hedging financial instruments to hedge risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the
Company's palicles approved by the board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, the use of financial dedvatives, and the investment of excess liguidity.
The Company doss not enter info or frade financial instruments, including derivative financlal instruments, for speculative purposes,

Market risk

Market risk I3 the disk of any loss in future eamings, in realizable fair values or in future cash flows that may result from a change in the price of a financial instrument, The Company’s
activities expose it primarlly to the financiat risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Company actively manages its currency and interest rate
exposures fhrough its finance division and uses derivative instruments such as forward contracts and currency swaps, wherever required, to mitigate the risks from such exposures. The
use of derivafive insiruments s subject to limits and ragular monitoring by appropriate levels of management,

Foreign currency risk management

The Company undertakes transactions denominatad in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluchuations arise, The Company actively manages its curTRICY rate
exposures through a centralised treasury division and uses natwral hedging principles fo mitigate the risks fom such exposures. The use of derivative instrurnents, if any, Is subject to
limits and regular monitoring by appropriate levels of management,
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The carrying amounts of the Company's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary fabiifties ol the and of the reporiing period are as foliows:

As on March 31, 2018 (sl amounts are in equivalent Rs, In lakhs)

Ligbilities Assels Net overall
expusure on the
Parficulars Grogs exposure  {Exposure hedged {Net lability Gross exposure  [Exposurs hedged [Net assel currency - net
using derivatives Jexposure on the using derlvatives jexposure on the assets / {net
CUTency CUTENCY fiabliities)
Trade receivables . - 349.91 - 348,91 349.81
As on March 31, 2017 (all amounts are in equivalent Rs, in lakhs)
Liabilites Assels Het overal
exposure on the
Particulars Gross exposure  {Exposure hedged {Net fiabifity Gross exposure  |Exposure hedged [Net assel currency - net
using derivatives jexposure on the using derivatives jexposure on the assets / {net
currency cUITency iiabiiities}
Trade receivables - . 34959 349,84 349,51
As on Aprif 1, 2018 {all amounts are in equivalent Rs. in lakhs)
Liabilities Assets Met overall
- exposure on the
Particulars Gross exposure  |Exposure hedged {Net liability Gross exposure  |Exposure hedged |Net asset currency - net
using derivatives {exposure on the using dervatives lexposure on the assets { (net
currency currency liabilities)
Trade receivables - 301.10 - 30110 30110

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Movement in the functional currencies of the various operations of the Company against major foreign currencies may impact the Company's revenues from s operations. Any
weakening of the functional currency may impact the Company's cost of imports and cest of borrowings and consequently may increase the cost of financing the Company's capital
expenditures. The foreign exchange rate sensitivity is calculated for each currency by aggregation of the net foreign exchange rate expesure of a currency and a simuitaneous parallel
foreign exchange rates shift in the foreign exchange rates of each currency by 2%, which represents management’s assessment of fhe reasonably possible change in foreign exchange
rates, The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding forelgn currency denominated monetary itsms and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 2% change in foreign curency
rates.

in management's opinion, the sensilivity is is unr ive of the §

sxposure during the year,

forsign exchange risk because the exposure at the end of the reporting period does ot reflsct the

Credit risk management

Credit risk arises when 2 customer of counterparty does not mest its obligations under 3 customer contract or financial instrument, leading to a financial loss. The Company Is exposed to
cradit risk from its operating activities primarfly trade receivables and from ifs financing/ investing activities, inciuding deposits with banks, mulual fund investments, nvestmenis in debt
securities and foreign exchange transactions, The Company has no significant concentration of credit risk with any counterparty,

Exposure {o credit risk
The carrying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure is the total of the carrying amount of balances with banks, short term depoesils
with banks, frade receivables, margin money and other finencial assets excluding squity investments.

{a) Trade Receivables
Trade receivables are consisting of a large number of customers. The Company has credit evaluation policy for each customer and, based on e gvalualion, credit limit of each customer
is defined. Wherever the Company assesses the cradii risk as high, the exposure is backed by either bank, guarantes/ietter of credit or securily deposits.

The Company does not have higher concentration of credit risks 10 2 single customer. As per simpiified approach, the Company makes provision of expacted cradit psses on irade
receivables using a provision matrix fo mitigate the risk of default in payments and makes appropriate provision at each reporiing date wherever outstanding is Tor longer period and
iwolves higher risk.

{b} Investments, Derivative Instruments, Cash and Cash Equi ts and Bank Dep
Cradit Risk on cash and cash equivalents, deposits with the banksffinanciat institutions is generally fow as the said deposits have been made with the banksfinancial institutions, who
nave been assigned high credit rating by international and domestic raling agencies.

Credit Risk on Dervative Instruments 1s generally low as the Company enters into the Dervative Contracts with the repuled Banks.
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Irvestments of surplus funds are made only with approved Financial Institufions/Counterparty. Investments primarlly include investment in units of quoted Mutual Funds, quoted Bonds,
Non-Convertible Debeniures issued by Goverment/Semi-Govemment Agencies/PSU Bonds/High Investment grade Corporates stc. These Mutual Funds and Counterparties have low
credt isk. The Company has standard operating procedures and investment policy for deployment of surplus fiquidity, which allows investment in debt securities and mutual fund
schemes of debt and arbilrage cafegories and estricts the exposure n equity markets.

Offsetting related disclosures
Offseting of cash and cash equivalents to borrowings as per the loan agreement is avallable only to the bank in the event of a default, Company does not have the rightto ofiset in case
of the counter party's bankruptey, therefore, these disclosures are not required.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidty isk refers o the risk that the: Company cannot mee fs financial obligations. The objectve of iquidity rsk management s to maintain suficient liquidity and ensure that funds are
vallable for use as per requirements. The Company invests s surplus funds in bank fixed deposit and mutual funds, which camry minimal mark to market risks. The Company also
constantly monitors funding options available in the debt and capital markets with a view to maintaining financial flexibity,

Liguidity tables
The following tables detait the Company's remaining contractual maturty for ts non-derivative financial iabiities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based
on the undiscounted cash flows of financial abifties based on the earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay.

March 31, 2018 Dueintstyear Duein2ndtoSth  Dueafter5th Carrying amount
year year
Borrowings 341.74 77591 . 1,117.65
Trade payables 33387 - - 33387
675.41 775.91 . 1,451.32
March 31, 2017 Duein 1styear Duein 2nd fo 5th Due after 5thyear Carrying amount
year
Borrowings 348.06 898.24 1,046.30
Trade payables 442 58 - 44256
790.62 698.24 . 1,488.86
April 1, 2016 Due in1styear Due in 2nd fo 5th Due after 5thyear  Carrying amount
year
Borrowings 172.00 254,00 426.00
Trade payables 21218 - - 21219
384.19 254.00 . 638.19

March 31,2018 March 31,2017 April1, 2016

Fair value of financial assets and financial fiabilities that are not measured at fair
value (but fair value disclosures are required): il Wi Nil
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47 Related party disclosure

a) List of parties having significant influence

Holding company

Subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

Key Management Personnel and their Relatives

Sri T.Kannan
Dr.(Smt) Uma Kannan Director
Sri. K. Thiagarajan Director

Sri V Sundaramoorthy
Sri R Krishnan
Sri S Paramasivam

Chairman and Managing Director

Chief Financial Officer {upto June 03, 2017}
Chief Financial Officer (from April 1, 2018)
Company Secretary

Enterprises in which Key Management Personnel and their Relatives have significant influence

Sivakami Textile Traders (P} Ltd.
Thiagarajar Milis {P} Ltd.

Tamaraiselvi Finance (P) Lid.

Kalaithanthai Karumuttu Thiagaraja Chettiar Memorial Charitable Trust
Thiagarajar College of Engineering

Thiagarajar College

Colour Yarns Limited.

Samy Automobile

Sundaram Textiles
Karamuthu Investments

b) Transactions during the year

The Company dogs not have any holding company

The Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

S.No.

Nature of transactions

Yoar ended
March 34, 2018

Year ended
March 31, 2017

Thiagarajar Mills (P) Ltd.
Purchase of Materials
Sale of Materials
Availling of Services
Rendering of Services

Tamaraiselvi Finance (F) Lid.
Availing of Services

Kalaithanthai Karumuttu Thiagaraja Chettiar Memorial
Charitable Trust
Contributions

Thiagarajar College of Engineering
Availing of Services

Thiagarajar College
Contributions

Colour Yarns Limited.
Availing of Services

Sivakami Textile Traders (P) Lid.
Availing of Services

2,505.28
362.70
20,63
1.18

2,212.70
132.33
24,76
1.18

4.80

25.00

0.20

26.21

4,24
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S.N Mature of transactions Year ended Year ended
MO Hre ottr March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
8 Sundaram Textiles
Purchase of Materials . 209.96
9 Samy Automobile
Availing of Services - 0.15
10 Sri T, Kannan
Remuneration 55.00 55.00
Availing of Services 2.19
1 Dr.(Smt) Uma Kannan
Sitting Fees 0.09 0.15
12 | Sri. K.Thiagarajan
Sitting Fees 0.24 0.21
13 | SriV Sundaramoorthy (CFO) *
Remuneration 1.93 718
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 0.04 0.23
14 | Sri 8 Paramasivam (CS)
Remuneration 3.96 377
Contribution to PF and Other Funds 0.18 0.18
*8ri V. Sundaramoorthy {CFO) for part of the Year
c) Balances at the end of the year
As at As at
S.No. Name of the related party March 31,2018 | March 31, 2017
1 Sri T Kannan
Remuneration payable 55.00 55.00
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48 Retirement benefit plans
Defined contribution plans
In accordance with Indian law, eligible employees of the Company are enfied to receive benefis in respect of provident fund, a defined contribution plan, in which beth
employees and the Company make monthly conirbutions at & specified percentage of the covered employess’ salary. The contribuions, as specfied under the law, are
made to the Provident fund as el as Employee State Insurance Fund,
The total expense recognised in profit or loss of Rs. 66.66 lakhs {for the year ended March 31, 2017: Rs. §1.80 lakhs) represents contribution payable fo these plans by
the Company at rates specfied in the rules of the plan.
Defined benefit plans
{a) Gratuity
Gratuity is payable as per Payment of Gratulty Act, 1972, In temns of the same, gratufty is computed by multiplying last drawn salary (basic salary including deamess
Alowance ff any) by completed years of continuous service with part thereof in excess of six months and again by 15126, The Act provides for a vesfing period of 5 years
for withdrawal and refirement and a monetary celing on gratuty payable to an employee on separafion, as may be prescribed under the Payment of Gratufty Act, 1972,
from fime to fime. However, in cases where an enterprise has more favourable terms in this regard the same has been adopted.

These pians typically expose the Company to actuarial isks such as: investment isk, inferest

Investment risk The prasent value of the defined benefit plan fiabity is calculated using a discount rate determined by
reference to the market vields on govemment bonds denominated in Indian Rupees. f the actual retum on
plan asset s below this rate, it will create a plan deficit

Interest risk A decrease in the bond interest rate wilincrease the plan liabity. However, this will e partially offset by
an increase in the retum on the plan's debt invesiments.
Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit lan fiabilty s calculated by reference to the best estimate of the

mortalty of plan participants both during and afer their employment, An increase in the Ife expectancy of
the plan participants wilincrease the plan's liabilty.
Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan fiabity is calculated by reference to the fulure salaries of

olan partcipants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants wil increase fhe plan's fiabillty.

Particulars Warch 31, 2017
Discount Rate 750% pa.
Rate of increase n compensation level 400% pa.
Attrition Rate 1.00% pa.
Expected Rate of Retur on Plan Assets 7.50% pa.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of infation, senjorty, promofion and ofher relevant factors, such as supply and
demand in the employment market.
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Amounts recognised in total comprehensive income in respect of these defined henefit March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
plans are as follows: Rs, inLakhs Rs. In Lakhs

Amount recognised under Employee Benefits Expense in the Statement of profit and Loss:

Current service cost 8.56 741
Net interest expense 7.98 8.30
Return on plan assets (exciuding amounts included in net interest expense) {0.35) (0.38)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in profit or loss 16.19 15.33

Amount recognised in Other Comprehansive income {OCI) for the Year
Remeasurement on the net defined benefil liability comprising:

Actuarial {gains)/losses recognised during the period 10.99 0.88
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income 10.99 0.88
Total 27.18 16.21

i. Current service cost and the net Interest expense for the year are included in the ‘Employee Benefits Expense' in profit or loss.
fi. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income,

The amount included in the balance sheet arising from the Company's obligation in respect

of its defined benefit plans is as follows:

Present value of defined benefit obligation 12161 11847
Falr value of plan assets {8.38) (2.93)
Net liability arising from defined benefit abligation 11623 115.54
Funded : 1158.23 115.54

15.23 115.54

The above provisions are reflected under 'Provision for smployee benefits' {short-term provisions)
[Refer note 25],

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obiigation in the current year were as follows:

Opening defined bensfit obligation 11847 10797
Current service cost 858 741
Interest cost 7898 830
Actuarial {gains)iosses 1084 0.50
Benefits paid (24 043 (5.71)
Closing defined benefit ohligation 12181 118.47
Movements In the fair value of the plan assefs in the current year were as follows:

Opening fair value of plan assets 2483 6.64
interest Income - -
Expecied retum on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest expense} .35 (.38
Contributions 2750 2.00
Benefits paid (24,05} (5.71)
Actuarial gains/{loss) 6.3} 0.38)
Closing fair value of plan assets §.38 2.93
Sensitivity analysis

In view of the fact that the Company for preparing the sensitivity analysis considers the present value of the defined benefit obligation which has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obligation Hability recognised in the
balance sheet.
{b) Compensated absences
As per the policy of the Company, compensated absences are not entitied to be carried forward to the subsequent financial year and lapse at the end of the reporting
period. Accordingly, no liability towards compensated absences are recognised in these financlal statements,
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49 First-time adoption of ind AS
Transition to Ind AS
These are the Company's first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 3 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2018, the
comparative information presented in these financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS
balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 (The company's date of ransition}.

in preparing its opening ind AS balance sheet, the company has adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in
accordance with the accounting standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2008 (as amended) and cther relevant
provisions of the Act (previous GAAP or Indian GAAR).

An explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash
flows is set out in the following tables and notes.

A

Ad

A1

At2.

%

A2

Az2A

Exemptions and exceptions availed

Set out below are the applicable Ind AS 101 optional exemptions and mandatory exceptions applied in the transition from previous GAAP
to Ind AS.

Ind AS opticnal exemptions

Deemed cost for PPE and Intangibles

ind AS 101 permits a first-time adopter to elect to fair value a class of property, plant and equipment or to continue with the carrying value
for all of its PPE as recognised in the financial statements as at the date of transition to Ind AS, measured as per the previous GAAP and
use that as its deemed cost as at the date of transition after making necessary adjustments for de-commissioning liabilities.

Accordingly, the company has elected to fair value its land as on the date of fransition and retrospectively applied ind AS 18 for other classes
of property, ptant and equipment.

Designation of previously recognised financial instruments

ind AS 101 allows an enfity to designate investments in equity instruments at FVOCH or FYTPL on the basis of the facts and
circumstances at the date of transition to Ind AS. The company has elected to apply this exemption for its investment in equity
investments.

Leases

Appendix C to Ind AS 17 requires an entity to assess whether a contract or arrangement contains a lease. In accordance with ind A8 17,
this assessment should be carried out at the inception of the contract or arrangement. Ind AS 101 provides an option to make this
assessment on the basis of facts and circumstances existing at the date of transition to Ind AS, except where the effect is expected fo be
not material, The company has elected to apply this exemption for such contracls/ arrangements.

ind AS mandatory exceptions

Estimates

An entity's estimates in accordance with ind ASs at the date of ransition 1o Ind AS shall be consistent with estimates made for the same
date in accordance with previous GAAP (after adjustments to reflect any difference in accounting policies), unless there is objective
evidence that those esfimates were in error

ind AS estimates as at April 1, 2016 are consistent with the estimales as at the same date made in conformity with previous GAAP. The
company made estimates for impairment of financial assels hased on expacted credit foss model in accordance with ind AS al the date of
transition as these were not required under previous GAAP,
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B

B.1

B.2

B3

B4

BS

B8

Notes fo first-time adoption

Trade receivables

As per Ind AS 108, The company is required to apply expected credit loss model for recognising the allowance for doubtful debs.
Accordingly, the Company has developed an assessment for allowance for expected credit loss. The same has been considered in the
opening and comparative period financial statements.

Transaction costs in respect of financial instruments
Under the previous GAAP, transaction costs in relation to financial liabilities are charged to the profit and loss in the year in which they
are incurred,

As per Ind AS 109, transaction costs in relation to financial liabilities are to be reduced from the related financial liabilifies and amortised
over the repayment period of the said liability. The same has been considered in the opening and comparative period financial
statements.

Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations

Under Ind AS, remeasurements i.e. actuarial gains and losses and the retum on plan assets, excluding amounts included in the net
interest expense on the net defined benefit liability are recognised in other comprehensive income instead of profit or loss. Under the
previous GAAF, these remeasurements were forming part of the profit or loss for the year. Adjustments have been made for such re-
classifications.

Fair valuation of financial assets and liabilities

Under Ind AS, financial assefs and liabilities are to be valued at amortised cost or fair valued through profit and loss (FVTPL) or fair
valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) based on the Company's business chiectives and the cash flow characteristics of
the underlying financial assets and fiabilities. The Company has remeasured the financial assets and liabiliies as on the date of transition
and the consequential impact has been given in the opening retained earnings.

Government Grants

Under Ind AS, Government grants related fo assets, including non-monetary grants at fair value, is presented in the balance sheet by
setting up the grant as deferred income. The grant set up as deferred income is recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the
useful life of the asset.. The Company has remeasured the capital grants as aforesaid and accounted in the Ind AS financial statements.

Deferred tax

Under Ind AS, the deferred tax asset and liabilities are required to be accounted based on balance sheet approach. The Company has
remeasured its deferred tax assets and liabilities as aforesaid and accounted in the Ind AS financial statements.
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50 Key reconciliation required as per Ind AS 101 on transition fo Ind AS

{a}  Reconciliation of equity As at As at
March 31, 2017 Aprit 1, 2016
Total equity / shareholders’ funds as per indian GAAP 13,488.04 12,485.36
ind AS Adjustments
Gain on fair valuation of land as per deemed cost option under Ind AS 101 3,396.98 3,396.98
Gain on fair valuation of investments 1,922.58 1,695.21
Remeasurement of financial instrumens 178 .
Allowarice for expected credit loss on financial assets {2.50) {2.50)
Reclassification of TUF subsidy as deferred government grant - (43.83)
Remeasurement of property, plant and equipment (31842) {318.42)
Remeasurement of Deferred Tax Asset as per Ind AS (605.84) (287 40)
Deferred tax impact {1.58) {15.32)
Total equity/ shargholders’ funds as per ind AS 17,881.04 16,910.08
{b} Reconciliation of Profits For the year ended
March 31, 2017
Total comprehensive income as per Indian GAAP 1,002.81
Ind AS Adjustments
Gain on fair valuation of invesiments 22737
Remeasurement of financial instrumens 178
income on reclassification of TUF subsidy as deferred government grant 4383
Reversal of depreciation transfer fo revaluation reserve .13
Remeasurement of Deferred Tax Asset as per Ind AS {318.44)
Deferred tax impact 13.74
Total comprehensive income as per Ind AS §70.96
As per our report of even date attached
For and on behalf of the hoard For CNGSN & Associates LLP
Chartered Accounfants
T Kannan RM. Somasundaram (Firm Registration No.0049158/ 200036}
man & Managing Director D
Chalrman & Managing Director ireclor Chinnsamy Ganesan
R Krishnan $. Paramasivam - Partrer
Chief Financial Officer Membership No.027501

Company Secretary

Piace : Kappalur, Madural
Date : April 27, 218
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